AGENDA £

VL.

VII.

Viil.

ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
Monday, April 03, 2023 - 5:30 PM
City Hall Council Chambers - 385 Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087

Call Public Meeting to Order

Executive Session.
The City of Rockwall City Council will Recess into Executive Session to discuss the following matter
as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code:

1. Discussion regarding possible sale/purchase/lease of real property in the vicinity of the downtown
area, pursuant to Section §551.072 (Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with
Attorney)

Adjourn Executive Session
Reconvene Public Meeting (6:00 P.M.)
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance - Councilmember Campbell

Proclamations / Awards / Recognitions

1. Child Abuse Awareness & Prevention Month

Open Forum

This is a time for anyone to address the Council and public on any topic not already listed on the agenda or set for a
public hearing. Per Council policy, public comments should be limited to three minutes out of respect for other citizens'
time. If you have a topic that warrants longer time, please contact the City Secretary at kteague@rockwall.com to be
placed on the Agenda during the "Appointment Items" portion of the meeting. This will allow your topic to be
provided sufficient time for discussion and will permit proper notice to be given to the public. On topics raised during
Open Forum, please know Council is not permitted to respond to your comments during the meeting since the topic
has not been specifically listed on the agenda (the Texas Open Meetings Act requires that topics of
discussion/deliberation be posted on an agenda not less than 72 hours in advance of the Council meeting). This, in
part, is so that other citizens who may have the same concern may also be involved in the discussion.

Take any Action as a Result of Executive Session

Consent Agenda

These agenda items are routine/administrative in nature, have previously been discussed at a prior City Council
meeting, and/or they do not warrant Council deliberation. If you would like to discuss one of these items, please let
the City Secretary know before the meeting starts so that you may speak during "Open Forum."

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the March 20, 2023, regular City Council meeting, and take
any action necessary.

2. Consider approval of an ordinance cancelling the May 6, 2023 General (city council) Election, and
take any action necessary. (2nd reading)

3. 22023-008 - Consider a request by Brad Helmer on behalf of Heritage Christian Academy for the
approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP)allowing existing temporary educational
buildings on a 6.64-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block A, Heritage Christian Academy
Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Multi-Family 14 (MF-14) District,
situated within the SH-205 Overlay (SH-205 OV) District, addressed as 1408 S. Goliad Street FH-
205], situated within the SH-205 Overlay (SH-205 OV) District, and take any action necessary(2nd
Reading).



10.

11.

12.

Z22023-009 - Consider a request by Jeff and Ginger Brock-Jones for the approval of an ordinance for
a Specific Use Permit (SUP)to allow a Guest Quarters/Detached Garage on a 0.4170-acre parcel of
land identified as all of Lot 1 and a portion of Lot 2, Block 2, Leonard and Adams Addition, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 504 Nash
Street, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

Z22023-011 - Consider a request by Javier Silva of JMS Custom Homes, LLC on behalf of Ruben
Fragoso of RSR Capital LLC for the approval of anordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP)for
Residential Infill in an Established Subdivisionon a 0.24-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 5,
Block 1, L & W Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 10 (SF-10)
District, addressed as 104 Glenn Avenue, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

Z22023-012 - Consider a request by Timothy S. and Susan M. Mack for the approval of anordinance
for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a Detached Garageon a one (1) acre parcel of land
identified as all of Lot 9, Block A, Saddlebrook Estates #2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall
County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District, addressed as 2333 Saddlebrook Lane, and
take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

Z22023-013 - Consider a request by Kevin Osornio of MBA Custom Homes for the approval of
an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP)for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision on a
0.1650-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 837A of the Lake Rockwall Estates #2 Addition, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) for Single-
Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 118 Blanche Drive, and take any action necessary(2nd
Reading).

Consider the approval of an ordinance for a text amendment to Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the
Municipal Code of Ordinances for the purpose of adopting a revised Subdivision Ordinance, and
take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

Consider anordinance adopting the March 2023 updates to the Engineering Department's
Standards of Design and Construction Manual, and take any action necessary. (2nd reading)

Consider anordinance amending Section 26-505, Prohibited in Specific Places, of Article VII,
Stopping, Standing, or Parking, of Chapter 26, Motor Vehicles & Traffic, of the Municipal Code of
Ordinances to include the prohibition of parking on N. Goliad Street from FM-552 to John King
Boulevard and on Shenandoah Lane from All Angels Hill Lane to the eastern terminus of
Shenandoah Lane, and take any action necessary. (1st reading)

Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract for the professional engineering
services with KSA, to perform the engineering design services and specifications for the Davis Drive
Water Line Project in an amount not to exceed $155,680.00, to be funded out of the Water and
Sewer Fund, and take any action necessary.

P2023-005 - Consider a request by Josh Swiercinsky of 7.1 Ridge, LLC for the approval of aReplat
for Lots 8-10, Block A, Sky Ridge Addition being a 2.293-acre tract of land identified as Lots 2-4,
Block A, Sky Ridge Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C)
District, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, generally located at the southwest
corner of the intersection of Yellow Jacket Lane and Ridge Road [FM-740], and take any action
necessary.

Action Items

If your comments are regarding an agenda item below, you are asked to wait until that particular agenda item is up
for discussion, and the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem will call you forth to the podium to hear your comments (please limit
to 3 minutes or less). This allows for all public comments to be grouped with each specific agenda item for the Council
to consider, and they are then easily referenced in meeting recordings.

1.

22023-010 - Discuss and consider a request by Duane Piercy of Redeemer Church for the approval
of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to Light Industrial (LI)
District on a 6.17-acre tract of land identified as Tract 2-01 of the D Harr. Survey, Abstract No. 102,
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the
Airport Overlay (AP OV) District, addressed as 1760 Airport Road, and take any action necessary
(2nd Reading).



Xl

Xil.

2. Discuss and consider approval of an ordinance amending Chapter 10. Building and Building
Regulations, Articles Ill, IV, V, VI, VII, VIII, 1X, X, and XI of the Municipal Code of Ordinances and
adopting a new Article XVII, for the purpose of adopting the 2021 International Building,
Residential, Mechanical, Plumbing, Fuel Gas, Energy Conservation, Electrical, Building, and
Swimming Pool and Spa Codes, including reflecting local amendments, exceptions and related
changes, and take any action necessary. (1st reading)

3. Discuss and consider an ordinance repealing Article Il. Fire Code Standards, Secs. 18-32 and 18-33
of Chapter 18. Fire Prevention and Protection of the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances and
adopting new Secs. 18-32 and 18-33 for the purpose of adopting the 2021 International Fire Code
including certain Appendices (B, D, H, L and N) and reflecting local amendments, exceptions, and
related changes while retaining Subsection (41) (2006 IFC, Section 903.2, as adopted by Ord. 11-
24), and take any action necessary. (1st reading)

City Manager's Report, Departmental Reports and related discussions pertaining to current city
activities, upcoming meetings, future legislative activities, and other related matters.

Building Inspections Department Monthly Report - February 2023

Fire Department Monthly Report - February 2023

Parks & Recreation Department Monthly Report - February 2023

P W N R

Police Department Monthly Report - February 2023

Adjournment

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Request for accommodations or interpretive services
must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary's Office at (972) 771-7700 or FAX (972) 771-7727 for
further information.

The City of Rockwall City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time to discuss any of the matters listed on
the agenda above, as authorized by Texas Government Code § 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney) § 551.072 (Deliberations about
Real Property) 91 551.074 (Personnel Matters) and 4 551.087 (Economic Development)

I, Kristy Teague, City Secretary for the City of Rockwall, Texas, do hereby certify that this Agenda was posted at City Hall, in a place
readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the 31st day of March, 2023 at 4:15PM and remained so posted for at least 72
continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.

Kristy Teague, City Secretary Date Removed
or Margaret Delaney, Asst. to the City Sect.



Proclamation

%ecw, child abuse and neglect is a serious problem that, unfortunately,

affects every segment of our community, causing psychological, emotional and
physical impacts that can have lifelong consequences for victims of abuse; and

%@M, each year the month of April is set aside to recognize dedicated

professionals across our state who meet families upstream — before crisis occurs —
to offer them accessible lifelines to mitigate their challenges; and

%%d, a collaborative, multifaceted endeavor, child abuse prevention

involves the diligent work of families, friends, neighbors, houses of faith, advocacy
groups, non-profits, schools, healthcare providers, social workers, law enforcement
and other government agencies; and

%‘wﬂd, the Child Advocacy Center of Rockwall County provides a multi-

agency, coordinated approach to the investigation, prosecution, and treatment of
child abuse victims while providing a safe, child-friendly environment to effectively
seek justice and promote healing for our community’s most vulnerable citizens; and

%‘wﬂd, Court Appointed Special Advocates - CASA volunteers - are

assigned by the court to speak on behalf of a child’s best interests, serving as a
voice to ensure that children have the opportunity to grow up in a safe, loving,
permanent home; and

%‘wﬂd, the Rainbow Room is an emergency item resource center for

abused children in the CPS system and is accessible 24-hours a day, 7 days a week
to provide clothing, shoes and toys to children who need extra support.

%, %q{aw I, Kevin Fowler, Mayor of the City of Rockwall, Texas, do
hereby proclaim APRIL 2023 as

CHILD ABUSE AWARENESS AND PREVENTION MONTH

in the City of Rockwall and encourage all citizens to applaud and support the work
these groups do together to promote awareness and take meaningful actions that
benefit children and families in our community.

97 %edd %ea{, I hereunto set my hand and official seal on this 3*d day

of April, 2023.

Kebim Fowler, Mapor




MINUTES £

-

ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
Monday, March 20, 2023 - 5:00 PM
City Hall Council Chambers - 385 Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087

I. CALL PUBLIC MEETING TO ORDER

Mayor Fowler called the public meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. Present were Mayor Kevin Fowler,
Mayor Pro Tem Trace Johannesen, and Councilmembers Dennis Lewis, Clarence Jorif, Anna Campbell,
Bennie Daniels and Mark Moeller. Also present were City Manager Mary Smith, Assistant City
Manager Joey Boyd, and City Attorney Frank Garza.

Il. WORK SESSION

1. Hold a work session to discuss the regulation of Short-Term Rentals.

Planning Director, Ryan Miller came forth and provided a presentation to Council concerning the topic
of ‘short-term rentals’ and their possible, future regulation within the city (i.e. Airbnbs, VRBOs, etc.).
Indication was given that currently only about 10 short-term rentals within the City of Rockwall
proactively pay their ‘hotel / motel taxes’ to the city; however, staff has extensively studied these
booking sites online and has concluded that there may be around 90-95 short-term rentals actually
located within our city limits. It is difficult to identify these establishments because the addresses are
not shown on the booking sites unless/until a person actually goes in and books and pays for the rental.
Staff has extensively studied what other cities are doing relative to regulating short-term rentals, with
the City of Plano, for example, making attempts to ‘ban’ them altogether. Also, several bills may be
forthcoming during this State legislative session. Several councilmembers seemed to generally indicate
a desire for the city begin doing something related to short-term rentals (i.e. at least start requiring that
they register with the city). Also, councilmembers generally seemed to express a desire for the city to
keep a close eye on the State’s legislative session in order to particularly watch proposed bills relative
to this topic that may arise. Indication was given that the city likely can require that these short-term
rental businesses register with the city and institute regulations related to life safety (i.e. require that
they have proper smoke alarms and fire escapes in place).

Councilmember Daniels provided several comments of concern related to short-term rentals in the city.
In his neighborhood - Lakeside Village — there are probably somewhere between four and seven ‘short
term rental’ homes. The folks who are renting these out sometimes misconstrue that the
neighborhood’s HOA serves as a property management source for those units. Sometimes they come
to the HOA and ask for a code and/or a key to get into the rental units. Also, sometimes there are
occasions when there can be up to fifteen people visiting these rental units; however, parking is limited
to two spaces per residence within the neighborhood. So, that causes a problem. Also, sometimes the
HOA gets phone calls from folks who seem to be investors, asking what the neighborhood’s short term
rental regulations include. He believes that the city does need to do something about these short term
rentals because they will only become more prominent and associated problems will only become
worse.

City Attorney Frank Garza interjected that a piece of legislation has been introduced that will be heard
next week in Austin. He is confident the city can institute health and safety-related regulations on short-

Page 1 of 15

5



term rentals. It will allow a city to allow the city to require ‘registration’ of short term rentals; however,
it does not allow for any prohibitions. It allows for the city to collect taxes due to it and for HOAs to
institute some regulating rules. In addition, it allows for cities to regulate some life safety matters (i.e.
fire alarms). It does also allow a city to regulate ‘party houses’ (i.e. you can have rentals but no ‘events’
may be held when renting).

Councilman Moeller believes the city should at least require these rentals to register with the city. Also,
he would like to see them be required to carry commercial insurance.

Mr. Garza suggested the City of Rockwall wait to see what happens during this legislative session and
then consider adopting some regulations thereafter, once the city has a better understanding of what
state law will end up allowing us to do.

Councilmember Jorif generally expressed a desire for the City of Rockwall to be proactive in looking into
what the city can do on short-term rentals, especially related to ‘safety.’

Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen indicated that his focus is always to balance regulations with private
property owner rights. He wonders what, if anything, is working well for some of the other cities who
have already instituted some sorts of regulations on short term rentals. Mr. Miller shared that how
‘short term rentals’ versus ‘long term rentals’ is defined will be very important. An ability for the city to
require registration and locate / identify the short term rentals within its jurisdiction will be important.

Mr. Garza indicated that he feels confident the State will continue to ensure that homeowners
associations HOAs have a right and ability to regulate short-term rentals and that cities’ regulatory
authority will likely be limited. Cities will likely to be able to require registrations, mainly because the
state wants to be able to collect taxes on short term rentals. Mrs. Smith, City Manager, interjected that
HOAs within the city seem to be pretty aware of which units/houses within their subdivision are serving
as short term rentals. Also, VRBO and some of the other online rental services have begun to collect the
state taxes, but they do not collect the local taxes. Mrs. Smith pointed out that there are companies in
existence that can be retained on behalf of a city to research short term rentals and try to identify what
local taxes the city is missing out on, but — so far — our city has not gotten into that at this point.

Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen shared that he may be in favor of requiring them to register and pay a small
fee, limiting the amount of staff time and city involvement. He believes that, for the most part, these
‘neighbors’ are likely not causing large issues / concerns within subdivisions. Mayor Fowler agreed that,
likely most of these rentals are and likely won’t be causing problems; however, some very limited
number of them may (i.e. noise, ‘party houses’).

Councilmember Campbell asked staff what sorts of complaints the city has been receiving on short term
rentals. Mr. Miller shared that the complaints have actually been far fewer than those who call to ask
about what the city’s short term rental regulations are. Mr. Miller shared that staff has received phone
calls, for example, related to properties in the downtown area, the Bentonwoods subdivision and the
Chandler’s Landing subdivision.

Councilmember Daniels generally expressed that he has safety-related concerns, specifically related to
the possibility that disagreements and associated disturbances may arise between individuals who are
renting short term rentals and using neighboring homeowner’s personal parking spaces while doing so.
This could result in police-related disturbances (confrontations, arguments, and potentially even
violence).

Page 2 of 15

6



Councilmember Lewis shared that he lives in Chandler’s Landing, and several months ago an email went
out to all residents within the subdivision letting them know that “you cannot have short term rentals
within our subdivision.” Mr. Miller pointed out that, even though that may be the case, staff has still
identified some of these units within Chandler’s Landing. Councilmember Daniels went on to explain
some of the challenges that existing HOAs have regarding updating their rules and regulations in order
to address some of the concerns associated with short term rentals (i.e. his HOA needing 2/3 of property
owners to vote on changing/updating bylaws, regulations, DCNRs).

Mayor Fowler suggested that staff begin working on a rough draft of an ordinance that can be modified
and considered several months from now once the legislature is done with session and the city better
knows what it can and cannot regulate.

2. Hold a work session to discuss the regulation of Credit Access Businesses.

Mr. Miller started out by providing a definition of these types of businesses, as follows: A Credit
Access Business is a business or credit services organization that obtains for a consumer or assists a
consumer in obtaining an extension of consumer credit in the form of a deferred presentment
transaction or a motor vehicle title loan.

Mr. Miller shared that “pay day loan” and “auto title loan” companies are good examples of this. The
City currently has two of these types of business — one in the downtown area and one off of IH-30. He
explained that in 2021, the City of Dallas essentially placed additional regulations on these types of
businesses. So, as a result, our suburb — City of Rockwall — has begun seeing more inquiries from these
types of businesses potentially wanting to locate in our city. These types of businesses typically like to
exist in clusters, usually along major roadways. The City utilizes “specific use permits” in order to try
and avoid ‘clusters’ of the same types of businesses locating in one general area. He went on to explain
that a lot of bigger cities have regulations in place to dictate how these businesses operate. Our city is
likely not interested in instituting those types of regulations. However, we may be interested in
instituting land use related controls thru conditional land use standards and/or registration
requirements. Mr. Miller shared brief details on how the State legislature views and regulates these
types of businesses and one of the bills being proposed in this legislative session. Mr. Miller shared that
the City of Rockwall currently categorizes these businesses as “financial institutions without drive-
thrus.” If the City Council chooses to direct staff to regulate Credit Access Businesses, staff would
propose that the text amendment include the following:
(1) Definition of Credit Access Business.
(2) The establishment of a new land use for a Credit Access Business.
(3) The Credit Access Business land use would be permitted in all of the same districts as a Financial
Institution without Drive-Through.
(4) The Conditional Land Use Standards for a Credit Access Business would be required to located
a minimum of 1,000-feet from any like land use as measured from property line to property
line.
Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen asked if the city currently regulates other types of businesses in a similar
manner. Mr. Miller shared that the city currently does so with ‘group homes’ in residential districts.
Also, “SUPs” are also utilized as a tool to prevent certain types of businesses from clustering in one area
(i.e. mini warehouses).

Mayor Fowler expressed that he is in favor of instituting the regulations Mr. Miller has shared this

evening. Councilmember Daniels and Mr. Miller briefly discussed ‘parcel to parcel’ measurements
Page 3 of 15

7



versus ‘door to door’ measurements. Mr. Miller shared that, in general, ‘parcel to parcel’ measurements
are easier for staff to conduct.

Mayor Fowler then adjourned the work sessions portion of the meeting and called for a brief recess at
5:47 p.m.

11l. RECONVENE PuBLIC MEETING (6:00 P.M.)

Mayor Fowler called the remainder of the public meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. (with all 7
councilmembers being present).

IV. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - IMAYOR FOWLER

Mayor Fowler delivered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

V. PROCLAMATIONS / AWARDS / RECOGNITIONS

1. Texas Police Chief's Association Foundation - Recognition/Accreditation of the Rockwall Police
Department (Presented by Chief Steve Stanford, Bridgeport Police Department / Best Practices
Accreditation Program, Team Leader)

Chief Stanford came forth and provided a brief presentation, generally explaining the accreditation
process and how the Rockwall Police Department fared during its reaccreditation. He explained that
less than 200 agencies in the State of Texas have been accredited, and even fewer have been
reaccredited. He explained that he has personally conducted many, many of these accreditation
evaluations, and our police department is the only one he has conducted that needed ‘no
modifications.” It meets or exceeds every category of evaluation associated with this program. He
went on to congratulate and recognize Rockwall Police Chief, Ed Fowler, and the entire Rockwall
Police Department for attaining this high honor / recognition.

2. 'Theater in Our Schools' Proclamation

Mayor Fowler called forth and recognized the local, youth chapter of the “Texas Thespians.” He read
and presented the group with this honorary proclamation.

3.  'Surveyors Week' Proclamation

Mayor Fowler called forth Craig Wallwork, a local land surveyor living in Rockwall. He then read and
presented him with this proclamation.

VI. OPEN FORUM
Mayor Fowler asked if anyone would like to come forth and speak during Open Forum.
Dennis Dayman

519 Cellars Court
Rockwall, TX 75087

Page 4 of 15



Mr. Dayman came forth and expressed concerns about a new business “The Northside Bar and Grill”,
which is an outdoor concert/dining venue that’s located right outside of the city limits of Rockwall in
the unincorporated portion of the County (in the city’s extraterritorial jurisdiction). In 2022, the
business applied for an alcohol license with TABC. At that time, many residents spoke at the County
Commissioner’s Court against this business. At that time, the business owners promised not to disturb
the peace and to work with neighbors on concerns. However, now the owners will not even return
phone calls. The company was granted their liquor license thru TABC. Mr. Dayman went on to express
that he and his neighbors have many concerns. He shared that there is a lot of noise from generators
and loud, bass-filled music, often times going on until 2:00 a.m. In Harlan Park, a subdivision within the
City of Rockwall, residents are dealing with a lot of these concerns. Patrons to that business have been
parking in the Tom Thumb parking lot and walking over. Also, some patrons have been trespassing in
and around residential homes within his subdivision. He urged the city to evaluate what, if anything,
the city can do to try and address some of the many concerns (noise, crime, parking, potential fire-
related safety concerns, etc.). Mayor Fowler indicated that the city is definitely interested and willing
to help, if possible.

John Brown

Mr. Brown came forth, indicating he owns Rudy’s Aviation Services that operates at the Rockwall
Municipal Airport at 1873 Airport Road. Mr. Brown shared brief background information on himself and
his career in aviation as well as his current business, Rudy’s. He went on to share that the current
municipal airport manager has a business operation in Terrell (flight training and maintenance). He
went on to express the belief that she (the airport manager) does anything possible to redirect business
to Terrell instead of keeping the business local and encouraging it to remain at Rockwall’s airport. He
said he’s been dealing with this for about 2 years now. He went on to share concerns about the airport
manager recently changing up a room that’s supposed to be conducive to training, with a distraction
free environment. Mr. Brown provided two, short, type-written letters to City Secretary Kristy Teague
—one from Ahmed Ismail (“FAA Certified Flight Instructor, Instrument Instructor, and Ground Instructor)
and one from Adrian Weaver (2570 Wagonwheel Drive Rockwall, TX 75032). Both letters generally
expressed concern about recent changes to a room at the municipal airport that used to have tables
and chairs in it, and it was utilized for training / flight lessons, briefings, meetings, etc. However, recent
changes to the room have resulted in it having couches and a desk, similar to a pilots’ lounge type
setting. Both letters generally indicated that the recent changes are undesirable and inhibit the ability
for meetings, training, briefings, etc. to be held. Mr. Brown shared that he has expressed his concerns
to the airport manager, but he has essentially been ‘blown off’ by her. Mayor Fowler shared that he,
Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen, and Councilmember Jorif serve as the city’s Airport Subcommittee, and
the three of them are happy to visit with Assistant City Manager, Joey Boyd about the concerns. Mr.
Brown indicated that six months ago he came to the city asking for permission to do a maintenance
shop, but he’s not heard anything from Mr. Boyd on that thus far. He did acknowledge that Mr. Widmer
(Building Official for the city) has recently taken over some things, so he is now working with Mr.
Widmer on this request. Also, he will appreciate if the city will update its website to point to a correct
link that is currently pointing to an incorrect site online (re: airport services).

Sulaine Callaway
517 Cellars Court
Rockwall, TX 75087

She too has concerns about “Northside Bar & Grill,” the same sentiments that her neighbor, Mr.
Dayman expressed a few minutes ago. She indicated that residents met with the company back in the
summer to discuss their concerns; however, unfortunately, the owners have not followed thru on trying

Page 5 of 15

9



to keep the noise levels down. Residents of Rockwall are not happy with these issues that are occurring
and ongoing, and she will appreciate the City having knowledge of these issues and being in support of
the issues getting resolved.

Yvonne Sullivan
521 Cellars Court
Rockwall, TX

Mrs. Sullivan shared that she 150% agrees with Mr. Dayman’s sentiments pertaining to the Northside
Bar & Grill. The music is extremely loud and ‘booming’ until late at night every weekend. She will
appreciate anything the city can do in order to try and help with these concerns.

Tisa White
3718 Huntcliff Drive
Rockwall, TX

Mrs. White shared that she lives very near the location of the Northside Bar & Grill. She has seen golf
carts with folks driving over to that location. She has concerns about those golf cars, children playing
nearby and the noise and crowds. She will appreciate any help the city can provide.

VII. CONSENT AGENDA

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the March 6, 2023 regular City Council meeting, and take any
action necessary.

2. SP2023-005 - Consider a request by Dub Douphrate of Douphrate and Associates on behalf of Joanne
Vockovic of the Pregnancy Resource Center for the approval of an Alternative Tree Mitigation Settlement
Agreement in conjunction with an approved site plan for an office building on a 0.32-acre parcel of land
identified as Lot 1, Block A, Pregnancy Resource Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned
Planned Development District 53 (PD-53) for Residential-Office (RO) District land uses, situated within
the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 1010 Ridge Road, and take any action necessary.

3. SP2023-008 - Consider a request by Asher Hamilton on behalf of RIV Properties, Alvin Moton Jr., James
Moton, Terra Moton, Debra Heard, Beulah Robertson, Tony Moton, and Kathy Moton for the approval
of an Alternative Tree Mitigation Settlement Agreement in conjunction with an approved site plan for a
176-unit condominium building on a 3.59-acre tract of land identified as Lots 1 & 2, Blockl; Lots 1, 2, 3,
& 4, Block 2; Lots 1, 2, 3, & 4, Block 3; Lots 1, 2, 3, & 4, Block 5; Lots 1 & 2 and a portion of Lots 3 & 4,
Block 6; Lots 2, 3, & 4, Block 7; Lots 1 & 2, Block 8; and Lots 1, 2, 3, & 4, Block 9, Moton Addition, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, situated within the Hillside Mixed Use Subdistrict and the
Horizon/Summer Lee Subdistrict of Planned Development District 32 (PD-32), generally located at the
southwest corner of the intersection of Horizon Road and Summer Lee Drive, and take any action
necessary.

4. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a change order with Crescent Constructors, Inc. for the
Heath Street Pump Station Improvements in an amount of $90,402.00 to be funded by Water/Sewer
Bonds, and take any action necessary.

Councilmember Lewis moved to approve the entire Consent Agenda, as presented. Councilmember
Campbell seconded the motion, which passed unanimously (7 ayes to 0 nays).

VIIl. APPOINTMENT ITEMS

Page 6 of 15

10



1. Appointment with Planning & Zoning Commission representative to discuss and answer questions
regarding planning-related cases on the agenda.

Sedric Thomas, Chairman of the city’s P&Z Commission, came forth and briefed the Council on
recommendations of the Commission pertaining to planning-related items. No discussion ensued and
no action was taken following Mr. Thomas’ brief comments.

IX. PuBLIC HEARING ITEMS

1. Z22023-008 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Brad Helmer on behalf of Heritage
Christian Academy for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) allowing existing
temporary educational buildings on a 6.64-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block A, Heritage
Christian Academy Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Multi-Family 14 (MF-14)
District, situated within the SH-205 Overlay (SH-205 OV) District, addressed as 1408 S. Goliad Street [SH-
205], situated within the SH-205 Overlay (SH-205 OV) District, and take any action necessary (1st
Reading).

Mr. Miller, Planning Director, briefed the Council on this agenda item, generally indicating that the
applicant is asking the city to consider allowing these temporary, portable buildings to remain for
one, additional year. He went on to further explain the nature of this request and the options that
are available to Council, indicating that its approval is discretionary. The P&Z Commission did
recommend approval of this request by a vote of 6 to 0. In addition, 39 notices were sent out to
adjacent property and land owners, and five responses from 2 property owners (i.e. four of them
were from the applicant) were received in favor of the request.

Brad Helmer
2917 Chuckwagon Drive
Rockwall, TX

Mr. Helmer came forth and briefly addressed Council concerning this request, generally explaining
the ongoing building efforts and future efforts that will ensue. He thanked the Council for its
consideration of allowing these portable buildings to remain for one, additional year.

Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, and the following came forth to speak:

Tisa White

3718 Huntcliff Drive

Rockwall, TX

Mrs. White is a parishioner at Our Lady of the Lake Catholic Church, which is a direct neighbor to
these portable buildings. She and her fellow parishioners have no problem with these buildings
remaining.

There being no one else coming forth to speak, Mayor Fowler then closed the Public Hearing.

Councilman Jorif asked for clarification on the timing of the elementary portion of the school. Mr.
Helmer hopes to have it finished prior to the start of the 2024-2025 school year.

Page 7 of 15

11



Councilmember Lewis moved to approve Z2023-008. Councilmember Campbell seconded the motion.
Following brief comments from Councilmember Daniels (who commended Mr. Helmer for his work
related to his school’s building efforts), the ordinance caption was read as follows:

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 23-15
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-297

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE
NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY
AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW
THREE (3) TEMPORARY EDICATIONAL BUILDINGS ON A 6.64-ACRE
PARCEL OF LAND ZONED MULTI-FAMILY 14 (MF-14) DISTRICT
IDENTIFIED AS LOT 1, BLOCK A, HERITAGE CHRISTIAN ACADEMY
ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS;
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR APENALTY OR
FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS
($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays.

2. Z2023-009 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Jeff and Ginger Brock-Jones for
the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a Guest Quarters/Detached Garage
on a 0.4170-acre parcel of land identified as all of Lot 1 and a portion of Lot 2, Block 2, Leonard and
Adams Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District,
addressed as 504 Nash Street, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Planning Director, Ryan Miller provided background information concerning this agenda item,
generally explaining the nature of this request for a detached garage/guest quarters/secondary living
unit on a property containing an existing 1,705 square foot home with a 360 square foot, existing
detached garage. He explained that the applicant would like to establish a 28x39’ detached garage
that is 1,110 square feet (roughly in the same location as the existing detached garage). Above the
garage will be a 28x39’ guest quarters. The total combined square footage of the structure will be
1,900 square feet. The structure will stand 29’ at the peak and be clad in siding, similar to the primary
structure. So, the proposed structure exceeds the size limitations of the city’s current regulations. In
this case, the detached garage exceeds by 485 square feet and the guest quarters exceeds by 333.5
square feet. So, the applicant is seeking approval of an SUP. Mr. Miller went on to point out that two
other residences not far from this location have similar, two-story structures built on them.

Mr. Miller shared that sixty-nine notices were sent out to property owners and occupants within 500’
of the property as well as nearby HOAs. Staff has received one response in favor of the applicant’s
request. In addition, the city’s P&Z Commission has recommended approval of this request.

Jeff Jones

504 Nash Street
Rockwall, TX

Page 8 of 15

12



Mr. Jones came forth and shared that his existing garage is old, small and dilapidated. So they’d like
to construct a new garage and build guest quarters too. He will be recladding the house to match the
garage, and it will blend in well with the neighborhood. He believes it will end up looking very nice.

Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, but no one indicated a desire to come forth and speak. So
he closed the public hearing.

Mr. Jones shared that he has several kids and grandkids. So, when they come over, his 1,700 square
foot main house is just a bit too crowded. So, this structure will only be utilized for family and close
friends. It will not be rented out.

Councilmember Jorif moved to approve Z2023-009. Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen seconded the
motion. Following brief comments, the ordinance caption was read as follows:

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 23-16
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. $-298

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC)
[ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL
COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR GUEST QUARTERS/DETACHED
GARAGEON A 0.4170-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS ALL
OF LOT 1 AND A PORTION OF LOT 2, BLOCK 2, LEONARD AND
ADAMS ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY,
TEXAS, AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN
EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR APENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE
SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE;
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays.

3.  Z2023-010 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Duane Piercy of Redeemer Church
for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to Light Industrial
(LI) District on a 6.17-acre tract of land identified as Tract 2-01 of the D Harr. Survey, Abstract No. 102,
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the Airport
Overlay (AP OV) District, addressed as 1760 Airport Road, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Mayor Fowler recused himself from this agenda item. So, Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen led this agenda
item. Planning Director, Ryan Miller provided background information on this item. This is located
east of the intersection of Airport Road and John King Boulevard. The applicant is wanting to rezone
this property so that future development may occur on it (rezone from AG to Light Industrial). The
city’s future land use plan designates this property as technology and employment land uses, and
“light industrial” is in conformance. Mr. Miller shared that the city’s P&Z Commission did vote 6 to 0
to recommend approval of this request. In addition, 18 notices were sent out to adjacent
land/property owners located within 500’ of the property, but no notices were received back by staff.

Page 9 of 15

13



Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen opened the public hearing, but no one indicated a desire to speak. So he
then closed the public hearing.

Councilmember Moeller then moved to approve Z2023-010. Councilmember Daniels seconded the
motion. The ordinance caption as read as follows:

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 23-17

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE
NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED,
SO AS TO APPROVE A CHANGE IN ZONING FROM AN AGRICULTURAL
(AG) DISTRICT TO LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (LI) DISTRICT FOR A 6.17-ACRE
TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 2-01 OF THE D HARR. SURVEY,
ABSTRACT NO. 102, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS,
AND BEING MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND
FURTHER DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING
FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT
TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR
EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE;
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

The motion passed by a vote of 6 ayes with 1 abstention (Fowler).

4, Z22023-011 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Javier Silva of JMS Custom Homes,
LLC on behalf of Ruben Fragoso of RSR Capital LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use
Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision on a 0.24-acre parcel of land identified as
Lot 5, Block 1, L & W Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 10 (SF-10)
District, addressed as 104 Glenn Avenue, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Mr. Miller provided information on this agenda item, indicating that the applicant would like an SUP
so that he may construct a single-family home (at 104 Glenn Avenue) in an existing subdivision. Mr.
Miller shared that Council is being asked to evaluate size, location and architecture of the proposed
home when compared to nearby, existing homes. Staff conducted the analysis and has provided that
information to Council for review. Sixty-nine notices were sent out to nearby land and property
owners, and two notices were received back “in favor of” and one “opposed to” this request. Nearby
HOAs were also notified, and the city’s P&Z Commission reviewed this and has recommended
approval to Council by a vote of 6 to 0.

Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, but no one expressed a desire to come forth and speak. So
he closed the public hearing.

Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen moved to approve Z2023-011. Councilmember Jorif seconded the
motion. The ordinance caption was read as follows:

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 23-18
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. $-299

Page 10 of 15

14



AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC)
[ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL
COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR RESIDENTIAL INFILL IN AN
ESTABLISHED SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION OF A
SINGLE-FAMILY HOME ON A 0.24-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, IDENTIFIED
AS LOT 5, BLOCK 1, L & W ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL
COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND
DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR
SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH
OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR
A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays.

5.

Z22023-012 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Timothy S. and Susan M. Mack
for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a Detached Garage on a one (1)
acre parcel of land identified as all of Lot 9, Block A, Saddlebrook Estates #2 Addition, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District, addressed as 2333 Saddlebrook Lane,
and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Planning Director, Ryan Miller provided background information concerning this agenda item. The
requested garage, in this case, exceeds the city’s regulations by 415 square feet, so the applicant will
need to receive an SUP in order to construct it. Mr. Miller shared that the proposed detached garage
is actually very similar in size and construction comparted to other garages in the subdivisions.
Nineteen notices were mailed out to adjacent land and property owners, and two notices were
received back in favor of the request. One nearby HOA was also notified (“Caruth Lakes”). The City’s
P&Z Commission did vote 6 to 0 to recommend approval of this request.

Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, but no one expressed a desire to come forth and speak. So
he closed the public hearing.

Councilmember Lewis the moved to approve Z2023-012. Councilmember Moeller seconded the
motion. Following brief comments, the ordinance caption was read as follows:

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 23-19
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-300

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC)
[ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL
COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR DETACHED GARAGE ON A ONE (1)
ACRE PARCEL OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS LOT 9, BLOCK A,
SADDLEBROOK ESTATES #2 ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL,
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND MORE SPECIFICALLY
DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE;
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR APENALTY OF
FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS
($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY

Page 11 of 15

15



CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays.

6. Z2023-013 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Kevin Osornio of MBA Custom
Homes for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an
Established Subdivision on a 0.1650-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 837A of the Lake Rockwall Estates
#2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD-75)
for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 118 Blanche Drive, and take any action necessary (1st
Reading).

Mr. Miller provided background information concerning this agenda item. The applicant would like
to construct a single-family home on what is now a vacant tract of land within the existing Lake
Rockwall Estates subdivision. Council is again being asked to evaluate the size, location and
architecture to ensure it is compatible with existing, nearby homes. The proposed home does meet
all of the city’s requirements with the exception of the proposed garage, which is a j-swing garage
that protrudes in front of the home by 5 to 7’. However, this garage orientation is not a-typical within
this subdivision. Ninety-two notices were sent out to adjacent land/property owners, and one notice
was received back in favor and one notice in opposition was received as well. The city’s P&Z
Commission did review this case and recommended approval by a vote of 6 to 0.

Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, but no one expressed a desire to come forth and speak. So
he closed the public hearing.

Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen moved to approve Z2023-013. Councilmember Moeller seconded the
motion. Following brief, additional comments the ordinance caption was read as follows:

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 23-20
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-301

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS, AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 75 (PD-75)
[ORDINANCE NO. 16-01]1 AND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC)
[ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL
COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR RESIDENTIAL INFILL IN AN
ESTABLISHED SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION OF A
SINGLE-FAMILY HOME ON A 0.1650-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND,
IDENTIFIED AS LOT 847A OF THE LAKE ROCKWALL ESTATES #2
ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND
MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF
THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING
FOR APENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($2,000.000 FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE;
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays.

Page 12 of 15

16



7. Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider the approval of an ordinance for a text amendment to
Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances for the purpose of adopting a revised
Subdivision Ordinance, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Planning Director, Ryan Miller provided background information pertaining to this agenda item. Mr.
Miller explained that this section of the City’s code regulates the division and assemblage of land
within the City’s corporate boundaries, and -- per the City’s Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with
Rockwall County -- the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) of the City of Rockwall. Contained within this
document is the City’s process for subdivision plats, the criteria for approval, and the role of City staff,
the Planning and Zoning Commission, the Parks and Recreation Board, and City Council in the
adoption of a subdivision plat. Also, contained within this chapter of the Municipal Code of
Ordinances are sections pertaining to the adequate provisions of utilities, proportionality appeals,
determination of vested rights, the Parkland Dedication Ordinance, impact fee regulations, enabling
language for the City’s Engineering Standards of Design and Construction, the City’s engineering
approval process, and regulations pertaining to disaster warning sirens. Mr. Miller then briefed the
council on a summary of the major changes, as follows:

e Changed the processes to be incompliance with HB3167 [2019].

e Removed repetition and created a consolidated set of General Platting Requirements and
Procedures.

e Consolidated the Engineering Standards and Procedures into a separate section. Also,
provided updated enabling language for the proposed Engineering Standards of Design and
Construction Manual.

e Incorporated design standards for subdivisions. This will help in regulating subdivisions in the
ETJ where permitted by the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement.

e Created a section that addresses agreements, appeals, and relief. Outlined the process that
is required by the City Council to grant relief from subdivision standards.

e Updated the Parkland Dedication Ordinance providing transparency with how fees are
calculated and incorporating the Parks District Map.

e Conformance with all other City’s codes and the Comprehensive Plan.

Mr. Miller explained that if Council adopts this document tonight, it will automatically include the
“cost per acre” associated with mandatory parkland dedication requirements and fees that the city
has in place, as those regulations are built into the ordinance that is being presented for consideration
this evening.

Mr. Miller shared that both the City’s Planning & Zoning Commission and Park Board have reviewed
the document, and both have recommended approval of this document. In addition, the city’s
attorney has reviewed the draft to ensure all legal language and references are sound.

Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, but no one expressed a desire to come forth and speak. So
he closed the public hearing.

Councilmember Lewis moved to approve the ordinance for the text amendments, as presented.
Councilmember Campbell seconded the motion. The ordinance caption was read as follows:

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 23-21

Page 13 of 15

17



AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS, REPEALING IN ITS ENTIRETY CHAPTER 38, SUBDIVISIONS, OF
THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED,
AND ADOPTING CHAPTER 38, SUBDIVISIONS, WHICH PROVIDES THE
FOLLOWING RULES AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO APPLICATION
PROCESSING PROCEDURES, SUBDIVISION AND PLATTING
PROCEEDURES, ENGINEERING STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES,
SUBDIVISION REQUIREMENTS, APPEALS AND RELIEF PROCEDURES,
PARKLAND DEDICATION, DISASTER WARNING SIRENS, GRADING,
EXCAVATION, EARTHWORK, AND EROSION CONTROL FOR THE
PURPOSE OF PROTECTING THE PUBLIC’S HEALTH, SAFETY, AND
GENERAL WELFARE INSIDE THE CITY’S CORPORATE LIMITS AND THE
EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION (ETJ); PROVIDING FOR A
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE;
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The motion to approve passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays.

X. ACTION ITEMS

1. Discuss and consider adopting the March 2023 updates to the Engineering Department's Standards of
Design and Construction Manual, and take any action necessary.

City Engineer, Amy Williams, briefed the Council on this document, indicating that — for the most part
— the updates are minor. The last time this document was updated, reviewed and approved was in
2019. Council is now asked to review and consider the recommended updates reflected in the very
large document presented to Council in their informational meeting packet in draft form.

Following brief comments, Councilmember Jorif moved to approve the ordinance adopting the March
2023 Engineering Standards of Design and Construction Manual (on 1% reading). Mayor Pro Tem
Johannesen seconded the motion. The ordinance caption was read as follows:

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 23-XX

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS, REPEALING IN ITS ENTIRETY THE CITY’S OCTOBER 2019
STANDARDS OF DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION MANUAL AND
ADOPTING THE MARCH 2023 STANDARDS OF DESIGN AND
CONSTRUCTION MANUAL FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROTECTING THE
PUBLIC’S HEALTH, SAFETY, AND GENERAL WELFARE INSIDE THE
CITY’S CORPORATE LIMITS AND THE EXTRATERRITORIAL
JURISDICTION (ETJ); PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR
EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE;
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

The motion to approve passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays.

Page 14 of 15

18



2. Discuss and consider directing staff to make changes to the Master Thoroughfare Plan (MTP) contained
in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan based on recommendations from the City's
consultants, and take any action necessary.

Mr. Miller, Planning Director, indicated that in January of 2022 the City of Rockwall entered into a
Professional Services Engineering Contract with Freese and Nichols, Inc. to review the City’s Master
Thoroughfare Plan (MTP) and provide recommendations concerning the classification of the city’s
roadways. Due to some issues concerning the North Central Texas Council of Government’s
(NCTOG’s) regional model, the project was delayed; however, on February 28, 2023, the City’s
consultant provided staff with the final recommendations and their memorandum to the City Council,
which has been provided in tonight’s informational meeting packet. Several recommendations were
made related to ‘downgrading’ and ‘upgrading’ various street classifications.

Should the City Council choose to direct staff to proceed with amendments to the MTP, indication
was given that staff will advertise the case and hold the necessary public hearings in accordance with
State law.

Following brief comments, Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen moved to approve this agenda item, as
presented (directing staff to move forward with making changes to the city’s Master Thoroughfare
Plan). Councilmember Jorif seconded the motion, which passed unanimously (7 ayes to 0 nays).

XI. ADJOURNMENT

Mayor Fowler adjourned the meeting at 7:17 p.m.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS ON THIS 3" DAY OF
APRIL, 2023.

KEVIN FOWLER, MAYOR
ATTEST:

KRISTY TEAGUE, CITY SECRETARY

Page 15 of 15

19



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
ORDINANCE NO. 23-22

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS DECLARING UNOPPOSED CANDIDATES FOR THE OFFICES OF
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCILMEMBER PLACE 1, CITY COUNCILMEMBER
PLACE 3, AND CITY COUNCILMEMBER PLACE 5, AS ELECTED;
PROVIDING THAT THE MAY 6, 2023 GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION IS
CANCELLED AND SHALL NOT BE HELD; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES
OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH; PROVIDING A
SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; FINDING AND
DETERMINDING THAT THE MEETING AT WHICH THIS ORDINANCE WAS
PASSED WAS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS REQUIRED BY LAW; PROVIDING
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas adopted Resolution No. 23-01 on
February 6, 2023, ordering a General Election to be held on May 6, 2023, for the purpose of electing
four (4) city officials — the Mayor and City Councilmember Place 1, City Councilmember Place 3, and
City Councilmember Place 5; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 143.007 and 146.054, Texas Election Code, the deadlines
for filing applications for a place on the ballot and declaration of write-in candidacy for the City’s
general election have expired; and

WHEREAS, the City Secretary, in accordance with Section 2.052, Texas Election code, has
certified in writing, attached hereto as “Exhibit A,” to the City Council that Trace Johannesen is
unopposed for election to the office of Mayor; that Tim McCallum is unopposed for election to the
office of Councilmember Place 1; that Clarence Jorif is unopposed for election to the office of
Councilmember Place 3, and that Dennis Lewis is unopposed for election to the office of
Councilmember Place 5; and

WHEREAS, the City Council herby finds and determines that the candidates whose names
were to appear on the ballot in said election are unopposed, that there are no declared write-in
candidates, and that no propositions are to appear on the ballot for said election; and, therefore, the
City Council hereby determines it is necessary to cancel the General Election.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. The facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are hereby found
to be true and correct.

Section 2. In accordance with Section 2.053(a), Texas Election Code, the following
unopposed candidates are hereby declared duly elected to the respective offices for a term of two
years and shall be issued a certificate of election following the date on which the general election for
Councilmembers would have otherwise been held:

- Trace Johannesen — Mayor

- Tim McCallum - Councilmember, Place 1

- Clarence Jorif - Councilmember, Place 3

- Dennis Lewis - Councilmember, Place 5
Ordinance No. 23-22

Declaring Unopposed Candidates & Cancelling the May General Election
Page 1

20



Section 3. Pursuant to Section 2.053(b), Texas Election code, the General (Municipal)
Election for Mayor and City Councilmember Place 1, Councilmember Place 3, and Councilmember
Place 5 called and ordered by Resolution No. 23-01, for May 6, 2023, is hereby cancelled and shall
not be held.

Section 4. The City Secretary is hereby directed to cause a copy of this Ordinance to be
posted on Election Day, same being May 6, 2023, at all posting places that would have been used in
said election.

Section 5. The term of office for the unopposed Mayor and Councilmembers shall commence
on May 15, 2023 after Oaths of Office have been administered and executed.

Section 6. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Section 7. The Code of the City of Rockwall, Texas, as amended, shall remain in full force
and effect, save and except as amended by this ordinance.

Section 8. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this ordinance
be declared unconstitutional or invalid for any purpose by a court of competent jurisdiction, the
remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected thereby, and to this end the provisions of this
ordinance are declared to be severable.

Section 9. It is hereby found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance was
passed was open to the public as required by Section 551.001 et seq., Texas Government Code, and
that advance public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given.

Section 10. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its second reading as required
by the City Charter, Section 3.11.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS THIS 3" DAY OF APRIL, 2023.

Kevin Fowler, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kristy Teague, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Frank Garza, City Attorney
15T Reading: 03 / 06 / 2023
2"d Reading: 04 / 03 / 2023

Ordinance No. 23-22
Declaring Unopposed Candidates & Cancelling the May General Election
Page 2
21



“EXHIBIT A”

CERTIFICATION OF UNOPPOSED CANDIDATES
CERTIFICACION DE CANDIDATOS UNICOS

To: Presiding Officer of the Rockwall City Council
Al: Alcalde del Consejo de la ciudad de Rockwall

As the authority responsible for having the official ballot prepared, | hereby certify that the following
candidates are unopposed for election to office for the election scheduled to be held May 6, 2023:

Como autoridad a cargo de la preparacion de la boleta de votacién oficial, por la presente certifico que los
siguientes candidatos son candidatos unicos para eleccién para un cargo en la eleccion que se llevara a cabo
el 6 de mayo de 2023:

Trace Johannesen - Mayor

Tim McCallum - Councilmember, Place 1
Clarence Jorif - Councilmember, Place 3
Dennis Lewis - Councilmember, Place 5

Trace Johannesen — Alcalde

Tim McCallum — Miembro del Consejo, Puesto 1
Clarence Jorif — Miembro del Consejo, Puesto 3
Dennis Lewis — Miembro del Consejo, Puesto 5

’ (4]
Si naturle (Firma)

Kristy Teague

Printed name (Nombre en letra de molde)

Rockwall City Secretary

Title (Puesto)

April 3, 2023

Date of signing (Fecha de firma)

,p\\\\“"
%S.»“ﬁgé‘ ."f

"‘!@
¥VAY)
b on e

""‘-‘mw?"‘
F %
JES

Y

i
?}'\
el

B

i
‘h\\m\”ﬁ

C
AN

—
o
=
-
-

(Seal) (sello)

Ordinance No. 23-22
Declaring Unopposed Candidates & Cancelling the May General Election
Page 3
22



CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 23-15
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-297

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC
USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW THREE (3) TEMPORARY
EDUCATIONAL BUILDINGS ON A 6.64-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND
ZONED MULTI-FAMILY 14 (MF-14) DISTRICT IDENTIFIED AS LOT 1,
BLOCK A, HERITAGE CHRISTIAN ACADEMY ADDITION, CITY OF
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR
SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OR FINE NOT
TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00)
FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE;
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, a request has been made by Brad Helmer on behalf of Heritage Christian Academy
(HCA) for the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) allowing Existing Temporary Education
Buildings to remain on a 6.64-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block A, Heritage Christian
Academy Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Multi-Family 14 (MF-14)
District, addressed as 1408 S. Goliad Street [SH-205], and being more specifically described in
Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance, which herein after shall be referred to as the Subject Property and
incorporated by reference herein; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body
of the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of
the City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all
persons interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing
body in the exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code
[Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall should be amended as follows:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That the approval of this ordinance shall supersede all requirements stipulated in
Ordinance No. 19-02; and

SECTION 2. That the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall,
as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific Use Permit
(SUP) allowing Existing Temporary Educational Buildings to remain on the Subject Property as
stipulated by Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-
02]; and

SECTION 3. That the Subject Property shall be used and developed only in the manner and for
the purposes described in this Specific Use Permit (SUP) ordinance and as specifically set forth
in Subsection 01.01, Land Use Schedule, of Article 04, Permissible Uses, and Subsection 03.12,
Multi-Family 14 (MF-14) District, Subsection 04.01, General Commercial District Standards; and

Z2023-008: SUP for Heritage Christian Academy Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-15; SUP # S-297
23



Subsection 06.02, General Overlay District Standards, of Article 05, District Development
Standards, of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall -- as
heretofore amended and may be amended in the future -- and with the following conditions:

3.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS

The following conditions pertain to the operation of Existing Temporary Educational Buildings on
the Subject Property and conformance to these requirements is necessary for continued
operations:

1) The Temporary Educational Buildings shall generally conform to the building elevations and
site plan depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance.

2) The Subject Property shall not have more than three (3) Temporary Educational Buildings.

3) The Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be valid for a period of one (1) year from the date of
approval. At which time the City Council shall review the Specific Use Permit (SUP) to
determine if a one (1) year extension is warranted.

4) The Temporary Educational Buildings are subject to administrative review in the event that
the Subject Property is sold, conveyed, or altered in any manner.

3.2 COMPLIANCE

Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP), of
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following:

1) Should Subject Property fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth herein
and outlined in the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) initiate
proceedings to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 02.02(F),
Revocation, of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02].

SECTION 4. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning
described herein.

SECTION 5. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict.

SECTION 6. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of
fine not to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and
each and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense.

SECTION 7. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged
invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the
application of any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or
circumstance, and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and
applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this
ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 8. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.
Z2023-008: SUP for Heritage Christian Academy Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-15; SUP # S-297

24



PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
THIS THE 3R° DAY OF APRIL, 2023.

Kevin Fowler, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kristy Teague, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Frank J. Garza, City Attorney

18t Reading: March 20, 2023

2"4 Reading: April 3, 2023

Z2023-008: SUP for Heritage Christian Academy Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-15; SUP # S-297
25



t'A

Exhi
Legal Description

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOT 1, BLOCK A, HERITAGE CHRISTIAN ACADEMY ADDITION

26

2 40 1 L33HS i 5 - o " o i m -z
hnﬂpumﬂaﬂ.mﬁqﬂwonge ,%..wauﬁp,”c”nn TR e | \ \\n LNINESYA SSRIDI/SSRIONI BMLS Ry i
NS - e 20 - 11 ~m=T wos HOUNHD LSIGOHLIN CELINA == =
SIS ) INSHISY3 ALTLA % SST0V I3 7 i
. o 1sdid I o SILSAL (T :
! "ONI "SHLVIDOSSY & ALVAHAN0A | Tommm— s O s TV ENIWEEVT ALILN
: 5 &1 '0d ‘g56 on Lot
SVXHL "ALNNOD TIVMMD0Y HOHNHG LSIOOHLZN. CRLIND / ¥ oboma, L 4o
TIVANO0H 40 ALID Ledld 3 d0 STASTML (Z) \ o 005 g ave
i : - 2 TovHd
S22 'ON IOVYLSdY "AHA¥UNS SIMTT I r'd ¥ SBYEQ GETID \ sty xoozﬂ.»mf\\\
LOT T = 0¥ 1799 - o1 5 000; o
(NOLIQEY HOUNHO OIMOHLYY Bl 3HL 0 ACY 00 40 Lyndu +OUNHO_LSIGOK_ZN g3l
¥ OWY NOLIGOY HDENHI LSIGOHLIN OELINN LS4 40 L¥1d3 ¥ HNiE) 15 3L 0 SzusnaL (T)
NOILIQOV AWIaVOV NVILSIMHD dOVIIMHH SYELTT)
¥ 20714 T LO1
LV1d TVNIA oz 30 5 an0
o HOHNHD OMOKLYD
LE% BT L 40 ATV Hno:
F006- 144 (3L6) 0099-124 (348) e R 5]
L8054 SVXEL 'TIVAND0Y LB0GL SYXAL “TIVAMO0Y -S5.85815 | /08 | 721 Tora
o " 3 [ W-S.aosTs | g ]
9BET X0 0d 1s QVII0D 'S BO¥I e E L [ - M ETIE]
"ONI "SULVIDOSSY % TIVEHJNOT HOMNHD ISIIOHLAW TALIND ISUId —wresreon | A \
WZCFr o 21
M ZDEGLTE |
HOAIAANS/YAANIONT FHdOTHATA/ MANMKO W, 5.06.32H 121
ooz o [l
- «:u u\\ $.55.50.200 I i
& = T e
£ % [ASvarN | [£n ]| ¥ 00°€ aITTHO
w mﬂ WS 500 ] N ste 30 O ara ONINNIOZE |
& g [~ h.gs.c52 0 =1 40 AINIOd
g 2" T N LSO o Seasa . L=
= T 7 ELSLES |z | ANFHESYI ALTLN % OV o9 VLI 235 e,
&b LECARTIS g i ' YT
; ThSLIRS 1 5300V NP1 42 v 0078 't 107 153 qu;&m\ ‘ n_nu
o0y ” ™ 8LBR.SI=7
uon LS aAh 21,657 Lnavasva \/ s Brie=1
6ie TS Y 80 z mﬁllt_E: b ‘\ 8rL=1
1 25¥Hd Sl HOOHETTEEH —~ ¢ L=
e / Bl LFY=V Q0oLz=d
19w I 96°ECL=1
: sis_3ams 'y ‘B0 4 S ¥ST=1
= LKE3 ALMLA OF «w&w\ 00°0e0=y
WL 0 Ny
ZON
TlvLiad 425

133HS SIHL
L ON WWL30 338
NOILYDIQ30 'M'C"d

96°96,..
3.2¢.96.265

8
T 3,65,00.00N-0
0,925

¥ "ON Tvl3aa S 'ON TL3a

JRIETET:

INIHSYY
FONIVAD

FERY k
3saraLs

707

,t 3
waars KOS ks %.HFH ».M_gwu v m hﬁ@ﬂﬁ

! ; . W & % @ ..M o j ]

€ 'ON vL30 Z ON TIv¥L3a } ON ivida ot | e

TIVOS OIHAVAED i T
 FIS - ) - (1

City of Rockwall, Texas

Page | 4

Z2023-008: SUP for Heritage Christian Academy

Ordinance No. 23-15; SUP # S-297



it ‘A

Exhi
Legal Description

: ; T a%n

T 40 Zi33HS' | gooe-TArlass) VL $O0B-TiM(ZiE) ENOEJ # i
29084 SVNEL "TIVANO0A AV0d EIUR 9632 N -

DU - PRI LT 0T — 2w

\Nm x\& —w . am

"ONI ‘SHIVIDOSSY ALYYHINOQ | WaTRs™  aswow

SVXIL ‘ALKNGO TIVANO0Y
TIVMMOO0Y 40 ALID
S8 'ON LOVHLSEV ‘AHAMNS SIMIT L'I'E
10T 1 —~ "0V 1%9'9

(NOLLIGY HOWRHO MIOHLYD 3T 3HL 40 AGY] HNO 40 Lvidd
¥ GNY NOLLIGGY HOMAKD LSIQOHLIN GRLNA LSHI 40 1v1d3d v ONIEE)

NOLLIQAy AWAQAVOV NVILSIMHD HDVLIMEH
V 3MD0Td ‘T 1071

LVId TVNI4

uejsiyD abejlLaH

006g—tLs (226}
480GL SYXEL ‘TIVMN0Y

¥008-Td (246)
480S4 SYXHL 'TIVMIDCH

B8EET X0H "0'd ‘1S UVIIeD 'S 8O0%T
“ONI “SHIVIDOSSY ¥ AIVNHINOA HOGNHD ISTAOHLEN JHELIND ISHIL
HOABAUNS/HTINIDNA YAJOTAARA, TINMKO
_ moubuz M

i AR T

ey Jo Ayo oo

002 YWY
40 hop QW; sl .mc@m:c ssFUM

yh
20 JO
B e oy joalqns 54 bys S_evuu pios
~pro.ddo ouy 10 ajep
pios woy sAop (0ZL) AJUBA} PRPLNY GUC WG ‘SOXD)L YUNOD IPNNEOY JU AB[D AFUNST By jO
9o 9uy U PRRICIRI § LORPPL Lna Joy 0|0 parciddd ayy sSIUN PiAUL 29 gPUS [DAcIddD S

voozr — " zsi.“
ayy o EmROY Je A1

“aoxal ‘lawooy jo AYQ @up 0} UARPPD Up jo 30id B

s
e
RS

Ao 3y jo suoy ISP

@ Je s Yy

— 3o Aop

unog Ay @ dde som
n:a anede auy oy Apeo Aqasey |

ABROUDAY

uopssiLiog Bistioz pay Buuuo,

H04 030HINHOOTY

ssaudny

oSOy Apy nd Amien

liinﬂw
#O0: §

10 fop A St s o oss puo puod £ uodn us

SDX3) §0 23035 24} 40y pup Ul oy

‘PeI0IE UBBY) UGPBIapIaGs pue ssodind suy o) BLIDS Sl PRYNDEXS Bl JOUI BUS G} PUDH
oD Ruslnnal BLIBalo) By3 63 PEQUBSONG 31 SWDU Sson uosssd ol oG o}

FWOEE 3 FLINNS — Peineddy Apatosiad Ap oipy 50 KILOWING PRUBIEIRPUN 44 *Jw S10j98

TTINMAI0Y 20 ALNAGD

SYXEL 40 ELVLS

mm.u.
93%59..» \
UmOag ] GEuisy

90T 0N "STV'd'd 'NMONB 3 HLINMD

Er dd fus sapurl pasogd

Aadoid 9ubm LOBIBY] YA SjEBLALCL JBUIDD Gy} Jol) BUD PuD| Bl 1O AeAIIE BIDINID
puO [BMe0 Ub Wodl 30id S| pe.pcad | JoU} AUIIeS AGosoU 0 WMOME 3 HLINNEX I AVHL
SINESENG 3STHL AS NIN TIY MONM S04IHERL MOM

AwIUEID SHOATANNS

saiGxg uoBEILIWOD AW SOXEL jO 2YDIS 9W) Joj PLD W] 3Ang KIDjoN

00
jo Abg " sy} %oy jo |bas puD PLDY Aui uodn Lang

"POIOIE LIOALY LOKGIEPIEUOD PUD SCOAING BL) IO} SWOE 3} PIINOOXD BY 10U I 0F PIBP:
plb UsWNNSL) BUOBSID) 811 0] pACUISEANS 51 SWDL asouw Losiad sl 8q 5] Sl O UNOLY
- PaiDaddo Ajoucs.ed AOp SIN) UG KILOULID PEUBIS.PUN 913 "B BcieH

M0 0 ALNAOD
SYX3L 40 JUVLS

J5euEL) uBr] 4o abobyop yyw Aog jo aingouby

‘eaidy
50X5), 30 BIDS B o) pUD U, dyand AIDIoN

> > - uv.cw\@v\ \\\w

S} 99UI0 1O IS puo puoy Aw wodn waAg

uopssiuig A

00T’

10 Aop — 27

POIDIS LIP3k UGNDITpIEOD pUD seadind Ly Joj BUIDS AUy PAYNOAXS BY Jou} S of paBpaMOLED
PUD_Bino) Buiobaey ap o3 PegaEqNs & suid dsoun Losid alj 33 o3 2ul'o) Lwouy
poscaddo £jpusssad Aop Si U0 KyLOND peuBEIBpLN BY3 ‘Al Biojeg
THMMIOH 40 ALNAOD
SYXIL 0 3UWIS

om0
jo cuonoagosds sup oy BupIoass (b SABIIS PO 'SBMes WGLE SSINORNL WIS
Jp Ugikes BUD mof “03nb pub qino Burod pub BSbg paANDes el L ssens

jonjon aty, Bupnpul g0 Uo £)3ans 1o 18348 el Us %004 2.

o1 o1 josusal uyn Sivelioro.dul bupiocos IemseR Jo Ay o o Slondintel woleipdns e
16 sjuowa.inbal o Gym 52)dwod SoU salao 10/pub Jadoaaep Buj [N UoRied B0 AUD JO UMD

aU} 49 LERIRPD SNV Ul 10 AUD UD PRlaniEua o [Ious smenas JaLS o un BUISKp asnou oN '3

uswdopnep ay) w0y aBouRIp
wicys Aq paYBlD ARGIRADD J0u 20 DRI IGOUIDIP U} Wik S2edoid 10y YIS SI0A3U03 9B0UISID
pUo Swieyod AboLom epinod o} Salifiob, AlossadaU suj Jo) sIgSuotsa) Sq llous Bd0IASD Bl G

syuswanosduy

UIoJp Wi)E o) AlIGIOMOdsR) B30} 409G [Ps LR LOISWPANS PUD JadoRASh Sul i

-BoisIAPENS UL UL $18805 Jo SPOIS Jo JUSIIUSHABYSE SU) AQ PALIOIEOSIO
10 woyy Buziness samou AUD 10 SWIDEH Aub 10} s[qisUndses 39 j0u k. [Duacy Jo A1) BUl T

‘ouokuo jo volsiuLsd oY) BLyheod ‘aluy AuD jo 4o Aysesosu

By _an,z_x wayehs aapoadil Jau 3o Lod Jo ‘BUMOWET J0 03 BUPED Jslple puD "Buuipiuiow
150 'BUIIITE UONINAEUOIRI 'UONINNSUCD S0 GSOGING Jo) sdLIE WaUREDI PIDE B}
uagn pus Ea. ‘o] <555 Jo S38IBU] 0 34BN Al SADY SSWI} D 30 PUS 1IN syand Aud pus sdns
Hues0s 3914 10 AuD vo Wb)AS BAjodUsaA LB} JO ADUBIONS D A3UDLEYUIDLI 'UGRORJSLTA lis
213,310 1o 1o8UDPUS fOM AuD Ul DI SIURLSIOIdLY Jo UKL smpio Jo isonus “Ssa) ‘Seley
sBupERg Aup jo jod 4o ([0 PaACLIES deed PUD eA0WeJ o} LB BUy aADY |pus ANEIN SHANd AUy 2

1216y paquosep
50 GyUowwosDe KRN suj ssvsae o ao ‘odn peopd 0 pajonUeNGd 3q [(DYS EBUIRING ON i

Bupkajie 8l PLD)SIBPUN BEp
| "ewoe Buien Jo 28N 6} DUMSEP SPEN fl9 JO UOHDPOLALOSOD PUD BSN [PMAL BL} o) PLD PRITS
sesadand auz 1; 1990 Bl U0 UAGHS BOILS JUSW2SDS BUY SAISR) AGRJSY Op PUD DUDISIPUN | |

90/d Sy paubls pub paynou useq anoy ‘NOLITOY

AWIGTEY WILSIHFD JOVIIEIH 20 1713 TV Wt 3904031 )| 4o oBobiiouwl © ondy oyn saznd
U0 [0 30U3 AflI6d JOLLIN] | PaSEaidXa UISISUl UONDJSDISUOD PUD 850dind oUl Uo UMOUS
ubassy} SE5DI0 S4ANd PUD SJUOLIESDD 'SUIDIP 'S0gunad Ibyom 'eind ‘SO '9390.55 |Ip ssAoloy agand
U} 40 N BiG @) PSP AQEISL '0}8IY PIQUDENS £ OLIDU SEOUM PUD 'SDXGL *Kuncy

Aojo0Y Jo Mg ey oy Loppa un "NBEIIGY AVECTIV NYILSMHO 39VLEEH 40 1vid
J7 &0 Uj2seu pIDLBISIP PUD JOID SR} U0 UMOUS PUD] BUY J9 JeUso paublzmpun Al |

TIVMADGH 30 ALNADD
SWYXIL 40 AUVLS

FSINASIA ISIHL AG NIW TIN MON JAOSRIIHL 'MON

‘ONY 40 S3WOY 49’9 ONINIVANGD ONY ONINNIIE 40 LNOG ZHL Of
1334 91200 40 3ONVLSI ¥ MOIIAGY HONNHD DIOKIYD BT 3L 40 AGY]
HNO GIYS 40 3N ISVIHENON IHL ONCTY ISEH BLZO5Y HINON "S0Nd

NOWLITY
HOUAHD OTOSLYD THvT 3HL 40 AQY] ¥AO OVS 40 MINHOD ATRALSYS LSOM
FHL LV dNNOA SN NOHI LZ/L ¥ GI IFT4 #¥'SEE 40 IONWLSIO Y LOYHl. dOGN

AIVS 40 3N ISTRHIZON J11 OO 'S BEOLEE HLNOS "SONZHL

SAN003 TI30 VS 40 'LIL 30vd
‘181 INTIOA M| 03GHOD3Y Y ‘41 L BNS JON OL OIAIANOD SY LoVl 380y

167 QIS 30 2N ISTRHLSON 3HI DHOTY ST L(L70E HITOS “SONGHS

'SQ¥003Y L¥1d NS 40 'BIC

3AMS ¥ 1SS N QI0M00TY SY TIVMHO0Y 40 ALID 3HL 0L KOLIGGY WY

1 35WHd Sldv H008837853d 40 V 0072 ‘I 10T 36 M3MHDO ATHIHLNON ISOM
SHL ¥ NGO GOM NOUI L&/! ¥ 0L 1333 95'95 40 FONVISIC ¥ “Lovels Je0v
05170 OVS 40 N LSYIRLNON 3ni 9N0TY “IS¥3 [@9,pEce HLAGS “30NBHL

HOYYL FWOY 00140 QWS 40 UINUOD ATIHLYON
LSOM 3HL L¥ ONMD4 00X NOMI 2/} ¥ 01 1333 $0'09 40 3ONVISIC ¥ LN3N3SV3
QIYS 40 3NIT LSYIHLNOS FHL ONOW LSY3 LETSHO0Z HINON ZONGHL

‘SQHOD3Y 0330 OI¥S 0 "B0Z 3aVd “#I9 INMIOA NI UIGHOOTY SY L0V
3UIY CEL0 GITHVO ONE 40 MANMOD 113 MOMIN Ny SNI3E 0S¥ ONY ZZL
39vd ‘62 IANTOA N 0IQHO0D3Y SY LNIWZSY3 SSIWOT ONY SSIMON: Nv 0

W1 ISY3HLNOS SHI NO ONNOJ O NOMI ,Z/t ¥ 0L 1334 »£'89Z 40 30NWISID

TIOL ¥ 1334 TF'0 BY ONNOS O0Y WO ,2/4 ¥ ONISSYJAE LOVHL 30V

YHP'0 ONS 40 JNTT LSVIHLON Il ONOTY “LSVI BZS0.40 HLNOS "ZINGHL

'SON0ITY 330 OWS 40 “6L 30Vd ‘£S5 INATOA
NI 03040074 LOVal 3O $§+8'0 G190 AIVS 40 INM ISYIHIMON 3HL NO
135 GO MO .2/} ¥ OL L334 94717 40 3ONVLSIC D% HY BAMND QWS ONMONY

{1SYI FSR0,49 HIHON SEVIE 1vHE
1333 867281 40 JONWESIG H0MD ¥ ‘133 DOGZ, 40 SNIOYY ¥ NV SLIELE

40 TIINY WALNGD ¥ ONINYH LH9R SHL 0L 3AUND ¥ 40 OWINNDZE FHL

1Y ¥INGD ¥04 L35 G0Y NOMI /1Y OL 1334 $074L 50 TINWLSIO T¥LOL W “1F34
122 1V ONO4 C0N NOMi /L v ONISSYAAS “LSY3 SLEZ.8L HINON “ZONIHL

INQWIGOY WOMNHD SSIGOHISH
GALINA LSHL *¥ 0078 ‘b 10T QIVS 40 3N LSAMHINON SHI NO HINMOO %04
435 Q0Y NOYI /1 ¥ OL 1334 19988 40 JONVLSIC Ou¥ NY ‘2AMN0 QY5 GNNOYY

\LSV3 ET.7.0% HLEON SHY3E LVHL 133J GE'EVT

40 SONYLSIO OHOWD ¥ ‘L3313 OODEE 40 SMIGv ¥ GNY L@l,iLey 40 310NV
TWHLNID ¥ ONAYH 1431 3HL OL 3AENT ISHINTW ¥ 20 ONINNIGIS ZHL LY

138 0OY NOMI ,&/L ¥ CL L33 8'F¢ 40 IONVLSIO DEY HY 2AMN0 O¥S CNNOHY

15V3 05,6048 HIMON SHVIS IVHL 1934 4242 40 FONVISHD GHOHO ¥ 1T3
00'0LZ_40 SNIGYH ¥ NV ,SLBRSE 40 TIONY TYMINID ¥V INIAYH LKDW

3HL OL 3ANMO V_40 ONINKIOZE =HI ONI38 LNIOd QIVS ‘SONOJ3Y 0330 QlvS

40 ‘8¢ 39vd ‘001 FIWMIOA NI GIIMOOSM SY LOVAL 3DV SBYE'0 0310 alWS
40 HINH0OD ATMILSRW LSOW 3H: ONBE INVS 'SOHODZY Lvid QNS 40 ‘LI
3005 ' LINEYO NI GIQU0OTY SV HOUNHD JMOHLYD ZV1 3HL 40 AOYT ¥n0
0 HINE0D ATIHLNON ISON KL L ONMOJ G0 MM 2/ Y LY DNMNSZE

SMOTI0L SY SONNOB GNY SILIW AR OISNOSIC AT INOUUYd

THOW ONGE QNY SYAAL “AINNOD TIVIAG0Y J0_SCHOD3Y 0330 3L

40 TI¥ '607 30vd 8 FWTION NI OS0G04 SY Loval 3WDY 0SLP0 dETO
¥ 40 TV GRY '6h 30vq ‘58 3rrion N JICH0OTM SV LoVaL THOV G0

30VG 0204 SATION M QIRIGIIY SY LOVEL IV SEFEO
¥_ONI3E OST¥ NV ‘SYX3L 'ALNMOC TIYMMIQN J0 Q0333
1¥1d 3HL 20 'SZE 3075 'V L3MEY0 NI 0IQN003Y SY TIVMHI0N 40 ALK 3HL
0L NOLOOY Ny 'NOLLIGOY HOMNHO ISIBOHIIN GALINA 1SHU 20 ¥ 42078

'L 167 30 TV SNIEE GNY 'S¥X3L ALNNOD TIVAODM TIVADIODN 40 ALD ‘922
'ON LOVELSEY AZNUNG ST LTE 3HL NI GLWILS ONVT 40 LOVML ¥ ‘ONI3S

NOLOS30 W31

City of Rockwall, Texas

Page | 5

ian Academy

SUP for Heritage Christ

Ordinance No. 23-15

Z2023-008

SUP # S-297

27



Exhibit ‘B’:
Site Plan

Z2023-008: SUP for Heritage Christian Academy Page | 6 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-15; SUP # S-297
28



Exhibit ‘C’:
Applicant’s Letter

February 8, 2023

To: Rockwall City Council
Ryan Lewis, AICP, Director of Planning
From: Brad Helmer, Head of School

Heritage Christian Academy

Mr. Lewis and Council Members,

First let me say on behalf of the HCA community how grateful we are that you worked with us to bring
our gymnasium and classroom building to fruition. We are looking at a May completion date and could
not be more excited. Your willingness to allow us to keep our portables during the building process
despite the track record does not go unnoticed!

Please know that while the intent of this letter is to respectfully request one additional year with our
portable classrooms, we will fulfill our commitment to you and remove the portable buildings this
summer should you choose to deny this request. That said, | would like to present the following
information as you consider the application for the SUP.

Current enrollment is 424 students: 264 elementary and 160 secondary students. This is the largest
number of enrolled students in HCA's 28-year history. In January of each year, we re-enroll current
families for the next school year. After accounting for the 20 seniors who will graduate, we have re-
enrolled 378 students, which is a 93% retention rate.

Open enroliment for new students begins in February of each year for the next school year (23-24). We
have already enrolled 17 new students. We have 20 students who are in varying stages of enroliment,
and 20 students who have shown interest in moving forward with enroliment. Yesterday alone, we had
18 families attend an Open House to learn about the school. All this to say, we are only in February, and
we are about to match, for 23-24, our current enrollment number. Historically, the bulk of our
enrollment of new students happens between April and August, so there is no telling how many
students we may have the opportunity to enroll before the 23-24 school year begins in August.

This is where | need to share with you my logistical concerns. It does not matter how many new
students wish to attend HCA if we do not have space to accommodate them. When my portables, which
represents 6 classrooms, are gone, | will move those students to the six new classrooms in our gym
building. The net increase, however, is zero. Currently, including the portables, | have 37 classrooms
available. So, in planning for next year, when my portables go away - even though | have 6 new
classrooms - | have no additional room for the number of students we could potentially enroll.

Z2023-008: SUP for Heritage Christian Academy Page |7 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-15; SUP # S-297
29



CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 23-16

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-298

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE  UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS
PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE
PERMIT (SUP) FOR GUEST QUARTERS/DETACHED GARAGE
ON A 0.4170-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS
ALL OF LOT 1 AND A PORTION OF LOT 2, BLOCK 2,
LEONARD AND ADAMS ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL,
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND MORE SPECIFICALLY
DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS
ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS;
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE
SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH
OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE;
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City has received a request by Jeff and Ginger Brock-Jones for the approval of a
Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a Guest Quarters/Detached Garage on a 0.4170-acre parcel
of land identified as all of Lot 1 and a portion of Lot 2, Block 2, Leonard and Adams Addition, City
of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 504
Nash Street, and being more specifically described and depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance,
which herein after shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference
herein; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code (UDC)
[Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall should be amended as follows:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas;

SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of
Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific
Use Permit (SUP) to allow for the construction of a Guest Quarters/Detached Garage in
accordance with Article 04, Permissible Uses, the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance
No. 20-02] on the Subject Property; and,

SECTION 2. That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth
in Subsection 03.01, General Residential District Standards, and Subsection 03.09, Single-Family
7 (SF-7) District, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] -- as heretofore amended and may be amended in the future -- and

Z2023-009: SUP for 504 Nash Street Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-16; SUP # S-298

30



with the following conditions:
2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS

The following conditions pertain to the construction of a Guest Quarters/Detached Garage on the
Subject Property and conformance to these operational conditions are required:

(1) The development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Residential Plot Plan
as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance.

(2) The construction of a Guest Quarters/Detached Garage on the Subject Property shall
generally conform to the Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance.

(3) The Guest Quarters/Detached Garage shall not exceed a maximum building footprint of 1,020
SF and a maximum size of 1,900 SF.

(4) The maximum height of the Guest Quarters/Detached Garage shall not exceed a total height
of 29-feet as measured to highest point of the pitched roof.

(5) The Guest Quarters/Detached Garage shall not be sold or conveyed separately from the
single-family home without meeting the requirements of the zoning district and subdivision
ordinance.

2.2 COMPLIANCE

Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP) of
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following:

1) Upon obtaining a Building Permit, should the contractor operating under the guidelines of this
ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth herein and outlined in
the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) initiate proceedings
to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 02.02(F), Revocation,
of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of the Unified Development
Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02].

SECTION 3. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning
described herein.

SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict.

SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not
to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense.

SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid,
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and
the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the

Z2023-009: SUP for 504 Nash Street Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-16; SUP # S-298

31



ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full
force and effect.

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
THIS THE 3R° DAY OF APRIL, 2023.

Kevin Fowler, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kristy Teague, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Frank J. Garza, City Attorney

18t Reading: March 20, 2023

2" Reading: April 3, 2023

Z2023-009: SUP for 504 Nash Street Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-16; SUP # S-298

32



Exhibit ‘A’
Location Map and Legal Description

Address: 504 Nash Street
Legal Description: All of Lot 1 and a Portion of Lot 2, Block 2, Leonard and Adams Addition

60ANASH ST

| -FE s —— —_——

o
| 508INASHIST)

V=

- |

506 I ASHIST]

e

Z2023-009: SUP for 504 Nash Street

City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-16; SUP # S-298

33




Exhibit ‘B’:
Residential Plot Plan
13341S HSVYN ¥0S

1
) 149. 28 L — Z
- ot S
WALK >
PoRTION OF LJT 2 /.» ' _
| Q_ _b__
34-8 = ylo-4
J\o i 2
e — } PROPOSED | _ )
] --GAREGE z
s o @)

EXIST HOME

ﬁnoz?owim /M

PLOT PLAN

34

City of Rockwall, Texas

LOT 1&2 -BLK 2

LEONARD AND ADAMS ADDITION

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ROCKWALL COUNTY,TX

Page | 5

Z2023-009: SUP for 504 Nash Street
Ordinance No. 23-16; SUP # S-298



Exhibit ‘C’:
Building Elevations

COMPOSITION
SHINGLES COMPOBITION
SHINGLES

T2 SLOFE

1 =5 T2 SLOFE

23' PLATE |17 | 23 PLATE

20' PLATE
FIN. FLR. FIN. FLR.
—|| iz FLaTE 13 PLATE 13' PLATE
FIN. FLR.
10" FLATE

il -

m% %_ @%
LTS
HARDIE HORIZONTAL SIDING HARDIE HORIZONTAL SIDING

RIGHT ELEVATION M\K REAR ELEVATION

FIN. FLR. reerrrrrrrr a FIN. FLR. / FIN. FLR.

|
I I
| |
| < > i
| |
e | e
| |
m I I m
COMPOSITION 8 W W A
SHINGLES | | COMEOSITION
| < | SHINGLES
| |
12 I I
<t e :
20/ PLATE 712 SLOPE
T T1:12 SLOPE. T » T T
s - : E 23 ALATE | x T 23' FLATE
0% 124N,

20' FLATE moo_u ﬂ_lbz 20' PLATE vw\ T

SCALE: 1/8" = I"O"

20' PLATE

FIN. FLR. 7. 9
=

13' FLATE N

FIN. FLR. FIN. FLR. FIN FLR.

| 1o PLATE 10" PLATE 10’ PLATE

0 00

0o

LEFT ELEVATION FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: /4" = -0 SCALE: |/4" = I'-0"

35

City of Rockwall, Texas

Page | 6

Z2023-009: SUP for 504 Nash Street
Ordinance No. 23-16; SUP # S-298



CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 23-18
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-299

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS
PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE
PERMIT (SUP) FOR RESIDENTIAL INFILL IN AN ESTABLISHED
SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE-
FAMILY HOME ON A 0.24-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND,
IDENTIFIED AS LOT 5, BLOCK 1, L & W ADDITION, CITY OF
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE
SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’
OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00)
FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE;
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City has received a request by Javier Silva of JMS Custom Homes, LLC on behalf
of Ruben Fragoso of RSR Capital LLC for the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for
Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision on a 0.24-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 5,
Block 1 of the L & W Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single- Family
10 (SF-10) District, addressed as 104 Glenn Avenue, and being more specifically described and
depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance, which herein after shall be referred to as the Subject
Property and incorporated by reference herein; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code (UDC)
[Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall should be amended as follows:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas;

SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of
Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific
Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision to allow for the construction
of a single-family home in an established subdivision in accordance with Article 04, Permissible
Uses, the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] on the Subject Property; and,

SECTION 2. That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth in
Subsection 03.01, General Residential District Standards, and Subsection 03.07, Single-Family
10 (SF-10) District, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development
Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] -- as heretofore amended and may be amended in the future

Z2023-011: SUP for 104 Glenn Avenue Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-18; SUP # S-299

36



-- and with the following conditions:
2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS

The following conditions pertain to the construction of a single-family home on the Subject
Property and conformance to these operational conditions are required:

1) The development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Residential Plot Plan
as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance.

2) The construction of a single-family home on the Subject Property shall generally conform to
the Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance.

3) Once construction of the single-family home has been completed, inspected, and accepted
by the City of Rockwall, this Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall expire, and no further action by
the property owner shall be required.

2.2 COMPLIANCE

Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP) of
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following:

1) Upon obtaining a Building Permit, should the contractor operating under the guidelines of this
ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth herein and outlined in
the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) initiate proceedings
to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 02.02(F), Revocation,
of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of the Unified Development
Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02].

SECTION 3. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning
described herein.

SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict.

SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not
to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense.

SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid,
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and
the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the
ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full
force and effect.

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.

Z2023-011: SUP for 104 Glenn Avenue Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-18; SUP # S-299

37



PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
THIS THE 3R° DAY OF APRIL, 2023.

Kevin Fowler, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kristy Teague, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Frank J. Garza, City Attorney

18t Reading: March 20, 2023

2"4 Reading: April 3, 2023

Z2023-011: SUP for 104 Glenn Avenue Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-18; SUP # S-299

38



Address: 104 Glenn Avenue

Exhibit ‘A’:

Legal Description

Legal Description: Lot 5, Block 1, L and W Addition

1529 E |-30, STE. 103
GARLAND, TEXAS 75043

SURVEY PLAT

FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 10194366

BARRY S. RHODES Registered Professional Land Surveyor (214) 326—1090

This is to certify that | have, this date, made a careful and accurate survey on the ground of property

in the City of

ROCKWALL

located at No. 104 GLENN AVENUE

Texas.

Volume 46 Page 293

The plat hereon is true, correct, and accurate representation of the property
as_determined by survey, the lines and dimensions of said property being as
indicated by the plat:the size, location and type of building and improvements

are as shown, all improvements being within the boundaries of the property, set
back from property lines the distance indicated, or visible and apparent easements.
TITLE AND ABSTRACTING WORK FURNISHED BY SECURED TITLE OF TEXAS

THERE ARE NO ENCROACHMENTS, CONFLICTS, OR PROTRUSIONS, EXCEPT AS SHOWN.

Scale: 1" = 20" USE OF THIS SURVEY FOR ANY OTHER PURPOSE
OR OTHER PARTIES SHALL BE AT THEIR RISK AND
Date: 1/17/23 UNDERSIGNED IS NOT RESPONSIBLE TO OTHER FOR

G. F. No.: ET0002699

—— 2~ —— THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED EXCLUSIVELY FOR
Job no.: 202300263 SECURED TITLE OF TEXAS
Drawn by: cs

ANY LOSS RESULTING THEREFROM.

10" ALLEY
N 88°00°00" E 4

( PLAT 68.00] )

Being Lot 5 in Block 1 of LAWHORN & WILLIAMS ADDITION to the city of Rockwall,

to the Map of said Addition recorded in Volume 46, Page 209, Deed Recods of Rockwall
County Texas.

according

&B_BE\I\___C ———te———or |
NW CORNER —re — v O
OF LOT 4 [ o—o0—0—0—0— 2 -
Noo
4 1>
25" BL
V. 46, P.72937 I
~ ! ~
i O [T
~ ©
[Te] | wn
n VACANT LOT =
. B
2P (104) i
4 = 10,576 SQUARE FEET S s
3 0.24 OF AN ACRE =
=z %)
o.4' | o
—o] ,
1.5'7
1.5"\Z+,_
|
2 g
@ @a
nng’ -“"S
> >
- 25" ;
V. 46, P. 293
o Oero138.00 ‘\—c [
OF LOT 3 Al (cMy WEST 68. OO,
/ \_( DRecTIows. contoL ) J
GLENN AVENUE
EASEVENTS & RESTRICTIONS ACCEPTED B
Volume 46 Page 276 msﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂﬂ?kﬁ of TEXAS

Z2023-001: SUP for 310 Harborview Drive
Ordinance No. 23-XX; SUP # S-

2XX

SURVEY

NO SCALE

D 02

NORTH

Page | 4

City of Rockwall, Texas

39



Exhibit ‘B’:

Residential Plot Plan
1T ALLEY
K BB4DODOF E E8.05
oy = OHEL OHPL
|
| D SETEACK
| | |
i |
! | I
|
|
| |
| . ! !
0,578 S.F. !
| D.24 ACRES [
. LOT 5, BLOCK 1 f{ I
LANHORN & WILLIAME ADCITECH :5':] I

ii'_l:

El
I - ] —
1 -:I I
H e g ,
! I 0 4 ey m !
Lo IRl !
- |
. - o
' |
1 .- ——
[ — |
L iy
U :
| — .
- B v 3 ] |
—_— J i [ IL‘E
Ly :I | i e [ ®
' 1El TOp — =
Bl o Seldpl )
3 | - 2l £
! ! N Lk 12
z i —l s ;
| II —y . o ——r 1! JI :
! II I| | | [ 1 [
b —- I e
I = —— 1 pE] 1
1 LRV I - !
|
I
I
I ! !
.l 21" BUILDENG LINE ———— I|. ]
B e 5 554 &+
[ =] ,. '|
i I
I
e __ __ -.'I.EELI' _'S-Eullll' __ __ __
GLENN AVENUE
Z2023-011: SUP for 104 Glenn Avenue Page | 5 City of Rockwall, Texas

Ordinance No. 23-18; SUP # S-299
40



Exhibit ‘C’:
Building Elevations

i
L |
T
—————
i
; WIRA W
.
] - et I
] | u | :
I3 - -
FES
I
H
e 12
=] - =
— [ %]
I [%] B
(=] f_';:'?
.l [ 1]
A5 e
== m
m
= 5 m
m = =
b= u H— 5
~ n = . 2
4
T 1 F -
= Zqi - & = T
éz'jﬁf? £ o: i 1 |SEm=SE=stes
= =

Z2023-011: SUP for 104 Glenn Avenue Page | 6 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-18; SUP # S-299

41



Exhibit ‘C’:
Building Elevations

o
w1

\

HIIH

— :

iz | | ' oz
o =
(. | : i

I | | = :: I'_||'| =

m ﬁ% = -

- m

i g Ef & £

= B E =

= 2 - = o

=) i i =

=
Z2023-011: SUP for 104 Glenn Avenue Page | 7 City of Rockwall, Texas

Ordinance No. 23-18; SUP # S-299

42



CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 23-19

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-300

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE  UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS
PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE
PERMIT (SUP) FOR DETACHED GARAGE ON A ONE (1)
ACRE PARCEL OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS LOT 9, BLOCK
A, SADDLEBROOK ESTATES #2 ADDITION, CITY OF
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND MORE
SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’
OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00)
FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE;
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City has received a request by Timothy S. and Susan M. Mack for the approval
of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a Detached Garage on a one (1) acre parcel of land
identified as Lot 9, Block A, Saddlebrook Estates #2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,
Texas, zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District, addressed as 2333 Saddlebrook Lane, and being
more specifically described and depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance, which herein after shall
be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code (UDC)
[Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall should be amended as follows:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas;

SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of
Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific
Use Permit (SUP) to allow for the construction of a Detached Garage in accordance with Article
04, Permissible Uses, the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] on the
Subject Property; and,

SECTION 2. That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth
in Subsection 03.01, General Residential District Standards, and Subsection 03.06, Single-Family
16 (SF-16) District, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development
Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] -- as heretofore amended and may be amended in the future
-- and with the following conditions:

Z2023-012: SUP for 2333 Saddlebrook Lane Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-19; SUP # S-300

43



2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS

The following conditions pertain to the construction of a Detached Garage on the Subject Property
and conformance to these operational conditions are required:

(1) The development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Site Plan as depicted
in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance.

(2) The construction of a Detached Garage on the Subject Property shall generally conform to
the Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance.

(3) The Detached Garage shall not exceed a maximum building footprint or size of 1,040 SF.

(4) The maximum height of the Detached Garage shall not exceed a maximum of 15-feet as
measured from the mid-point of the pitched roof.

(5) The Detached Garage shall not be sold or conveyed separately from the single-family home
without meeting the requirements of the zoning district and subdivision ordinance.

(6) No additional accessory structures shall be permitted on the Subject Property.
2.2 COMPLIANCE

Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP) of
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following:

1) Upon obtaining a Building Permit, should the contractor operating under the guidelines of this
ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth herein and outlined in
the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) initiate proceedings
to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 02.02(F), Revocation,
of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of the Unified Development
Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02].

SECTION 3. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning
described herein.

SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict.

SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not
to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense.

SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid,
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and
the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the
ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full
force and effect.

Z2023-012: SUP for 2333 Saddlebrook Lane Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-19; SUP # S-300

44



SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
THIS THE 3R° DAY OF APRIL, 2023.

Kevin Fowler, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kristy Teague, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Frank J. Garza, City Attorney

18t Reading: March 20, 2023

2" Reading: April 3, 2023

Z2023-012: SUP for 2333 Saddlebrook Lane Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-19; SUP # S-300

45



Exhibit ‘A’
Location Map and Legal Description

Address: 2333 Saddlebrook Lane
Leqgal Description: Lot 9, Block A, Saddlebrook Estates Addition

|
|
i
|
|
}

Z2023-012: SUP for 2333 Saddlebrook Lane Page | 4 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-19; SUP # S-300

46



Exhibit ‘B’
Site Plan

ooo N 8Y'5331" €
2’
MRD

L

269.55"

o

{ DIRECTIONAL CONTROL )

S 00°06'29" E

9

1.01 ACRES OF LAND

MRO!

Know: anunm_bi.m

SURVEY PLAT

BRIAN S. RHODES Registered Professional Land Surveyor (972) 475-8940
This is to certify that | have, this date, made o careful and accurate survey on the ground of property

SHERHODES

WWW.RHODESSURVEYING.COM

focated at No. 2333 SADDLEBROOK LANE in the city of ROCKWALL Texas.,
..0» No._ 8 , Block No. A
,» an addition in the city of
mOoxiE.r ROCKWALL _COUNTY Texas according to the PLAT THEREOF RECORDED

in CABINET B at SLIDE 238 of the MAP records of ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.

1529 E 1-30, STE. 106, GARLAND, TX 73043 — FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 10194052

The plat harean ia trus, comect, ond accurate representation of the property

a8 determined by survey, the lines and dimensions of soid property being s
indicated by the plat:the size, location and type of building ond improvomants

are os shown, dll improvements being within the boundaries of the property, set
back from property fines the distance indicated, or visible and opparent sasements.
TITLE AND ABSTRACTING WORK FURNISHED BY DOS GROUP.

THERE ARE NO ENCROACHMENTS, CONFLICTS, OR PROTRUSIONS, EXCEPT AS SHOWN.

Scale: 1" = 40" USE OF THIS SURVEY FOR ANY OTHER PURPOSE
OR OTHER PARTIES SHALL BE AT THEIR RISK AND
Dote:  __01/12/2023  UNDERSIGNED IS NOT RESPONSIBLE TO OTHER FOR
6. F. No: ANY 1L0SS RESULTING THEREFROM,
== 5o THS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED EXCLUSIVELY FOR
Job 0.t 111766 DDS GROUP

Orawn by: CcF

47

City of Rockwall, Texas

Page | 5

Z2023-012: SUP for 2333 Saddlebrook Lane

Ordinance No. 23-19; SUP # S-300



Exhibit ‘C’
Building Elevations

Rendering of proposed ‘Special Use’ building.
Concrete slab, wood frame, exterior walls brick / vertical siding, composite shingles, aluminum garage doors, SH vinyl windows, secure steel entry door and all paint to
match current residence,

Existing Residence Elevations:
Depicting brick, vertical siding, roof line, composite shingle, windows, garage doors and paint colors.
Like and matchin, Sﬁmam_m will be used on the ‘Special Use’ building.

City of Rockwall, Texas

Page | 6

Z2023-012: SUP for 2333 Saddlebrook Lane

Ordinance No. 23-19; SUP # S-300

48



CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 23-20
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-301

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT 75 (PD-75) [ORDINANCE NO. 16-01 AND THE
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02]
OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS,
AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC
USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR RESIDENTIAL INFILL IN AN
ESTABLISHED SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW THE
CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE-FAMILY HOME ON A 0.1650-
ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS LOT 847A OF THE
LAKE ROCKWALL ESTATES #2 ADDITION, CITY OF
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE
SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’
OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00)
FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE;
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City has received a request by Kevin Osornio of MBA Custom Homes for the
approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision for the
purpose of constructing a single-family home on a 0.1650-acre parcel of land identified as Lot
837A of the Lake Rockwall Estates #2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned
Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses, addressed
as 118 Blanche Drive, and being more specifically described and depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ of this
ordinance, which herein after shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by
reference herein; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that Planned Development District 75 (PD-75)
[Ordinance No. 16-01] and the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the
City of Rockwall should be amended as follows:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas;

SECTION 1. That Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) [Ordinance No. 16-01] and the Unified
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall, as heretofore amended,
be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential
Infill in an Established Subdivision to allow for the construction of a single-family home in an
established subdivision in accordance with Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] on the Subject Property; and,

Z2023-013: SUP for 118 Blanche Drive Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-20; SUP # S-301

49



SECTION 2. That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth in
Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) [Ordinance No. 16-01] and Subsection 03.01, General
Residential District Standards, and Subsection 03.09, Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, of Article
05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-
02] -- as heretofore amended and may be amended in the future -- and with the following
conditions:

2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS

The following conditions pertain to the construction of a single-family home on the Subject
Property and conformance to these operational conditions are required:

1) The development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Residential Plot Plan
as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance.

2) The construction of a single-family home on the Subject Property shall generally conform to
the Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance.

3) Once construction of the single-family home has been completed, inspected, and accepted
by the City of Rockwall, this Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall expire, and no further action by
the property owner shall be required.

2.2 COMPLIANCE

Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP) of
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following:

1) Upon obtaining a Building Permit, should the contractor operating under the guidelines of this
ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth herein and outlined in
the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) initiate proceedings
to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 02.02(F), Revocation,
of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of the Unified Development
Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02].

SECTION 3. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning
described herein.

SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict.

SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not
to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense.

SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid,
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and
the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the

Z2023-013: SUP for 118 Blanche Drive Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-20; SUP # S-301

50



ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full
force and effect.

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
THIS THE 3R° DAY OF APRIL, 2023.

Kevin Fowler, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kristy Teague, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Frank J. Garza, City Attorney

18t Reading: March 20, 2023

2" Reading: April 3, 2023

Z2023-013: SUP for 118 Blanche Drive Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-20; SUP # S-301

51



Exhibit ‘B’:
Residential Plot Plan
Address: 118 Blanche Drive

Legal Description: Lot 837A of the Lake Rockwall Estates #2 Addition

. BRI .
R
tatetetetetet

SRR Ay n
e g

wo ]
.’ .

S

COCBEC S s 4
R o o o

XX

o
)
&

O
)

, S0 e 0
LR 2
ST

Fetetels:

s

PP
0

o
LK XA XKD
g X
e,

5oL
elale 0le!
KPR
pﬁ%&&ﬁ&

B 'y
<]
<3

-

LXK XK
5 “0%:0“40:0:0‘4-"0’0’1‘0
Fa%e%e % 009 %!

o a7
9,

9
LA

g
(0
355
KL
o
2

by

D
£
&
S5
8RS
$02555
%
823
o

O
X X )
0
<A

2

X

%
ol

58585

el
5

Talets’

Yo%y B 0&@500&*@*&%3 LABETS e
Dafeleleleleleleleteletets%s’ sl S SRR SRR KRR
T e B ateateteletel & L0

Kb Xkl IR I Ao .

e CRAIHRAIAH
e ST % %4 o0 o I OO o 2
ey S e

A
Fatatad b 4ad - e o0 T %e®
"4 Pl .

P

Z2023-013: SUP for 118 Blanche Drive Page | 4 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-20; SUP # S-301

52



Exhibit ‘B’:

Residential Plot Plan

. Eg & & o
XL TTIYMA20d &y ﬁ a °|
. < El g
7 = o0 FHONYTG 811 g%%% T ig : <
W0-0L =k 1
NYd 31IS - '¥d IHONY19 81}
¥A IHONYTIE
0009 M .00.0200S WIYMIAIS DNEnd v \
i — AN
| ~
| |
ANRATN =0 |
A1ZWINTT - S |
|
I %
| @
|
vy |
B —
| |
| t
| |
| |
| | o
I i o)
| | | I~
I i
\ ] | | z <
| & I X & | = :
R . |88
ig B8 =,
N 2| = 12 = w Sy, @
§omog FEE R e
I 8T R
| | o
| | >
I |
| |
| |
| |
e[| !
| |
|
2 | g
|
| |
£ [ I S msames L
| !
2 | SYEL TIRODY I &
'c: ‘ EUE VY ERUR- el ‘ ;
h | Z 0N LHEMeOT3430 S_-]Ilﬂ:ld]uu T TR0 | )
I | | |
.£0°09 3.Sk.0E LON L .
007 og/ s
008 ) A
Z2023-013: SUP for 118 Blanche Drive Page | 5 City of Rockwall, Texas

Ordinance No. 23-20; SUP # S-301

53



Exhibit ‘C’
Building Elevations

SoL-v

suopeas|y
CZOZIEZICO 310
oL ON 123r0Hd

@

SOOT 1% OIAYLOO
HINKO

vour s
WINDIEIA

weoe.EBasucy fsen
OF0SE XL 'PUBKES U qoucuend 20/E
4z60 Lbb Bl

oy Asieqy

XL TIVMMO0Y
'HA IHONYTIG 814

uo

[

£
NOILVAT T3 18am -/

SEEeme s
Etcessst o

SIS d

LNBVED AT
WOk =.8/1 z
NOILVAZTE L8V
1.0 @ 5B HH.0L B 55V
TR INA T A

HE 055 HE 050

WOl =871

Y000 QVEHHEAD £ X 3

NOILLYATTE LINOYd fvu

W00 —
woa s |

@ wfww,/f/

ONIS YT INNED BB

ey
RHAGIN A RS 0s0E YA

City of Rockwall, Texas

Page | 6

Z2023-013: SUP for 118 Blanche Drive
Ordinance No. 23-20; SUP # S-301

54



CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 23-21

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, REPEALING IN ITS ENTIRETY CHAPTER 38,
SUBDIVISIONS, OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES, AS
HERETOFORE AMENDED, AND ADOPTING CHAPTER 38,
SUBDIVISIONS, WHICH PROVIDES THE FOLLOWING RULES AND
REGULATIONS RELATING TO APPLICATION PROCESSING
PROCEDURES, SUBDIVISION AND PLATTING PROCEEDURES,
ENGINEERING STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES, SUBDIVISION
REQUIREMENTS, APPEALS AND RELIEF PROCEDURES, PARKLAND
DEDICATION, DISASTER WARNING SIRENS, GRADING, EXCAVATION,
EARTHWORK, AND EROSION CONTROL FOR THE PURPOSE OF
PROTECTING THE PUBLIC’S HEALTH, SAFETY, AND GENERAL
WELFARE INSIDE THE CITY’'S CORPORATE LIMITS AND THE
EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION (ETJ); PROVIDING FOR A
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE;
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Rockwall, Texas (City) is a Home-Rule City in accordance with Chapter 9,
Home-Rule Municipality, of Subtitle A, Types of Municipalities, of Title 2, Organization of Municipal
Government, of the Texas Local Government Code, and by State law and City Charter is permitted
to establish ordinances for the purpose of protecting the health, safety, and general welfare of its
residents; and

WHEREAS, the current Subdivision Ordinance was originally adopted on September 15, 1978
through Ordinance No. 78-20, which has been amended many times since its inception; and

WHEREAS, the City has prepared a revised and updated Subdivision Ordinance designed to allow
the community to maintain its traditional character and pattern of development while accommodating
new growth demands for residential and non-residential development within the City and its
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and comply with State law;

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rockwall -- after holding a public hearing -- has
determined that these subdivision regulations will better protect the health, safety and general
welfare of its citizens and fulfill the purpose of Chapter 212, Municipal Regulation of Subdivision and
Property Development, of the Texas Local Government Code relating to subdivision plats and other
constitutional and statutory grants of power.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That the current Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances of
the City of Rockwall be repealed in its entirety and a revised Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the
Municipal Code of Ordinances shall be adopted as specifically described in Exhibit ‘A’ of this
ordinance;

SECTION 2. Thatany person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine

Ch. 38, Subdivisions, Municipal Code of Ordinances Page 1 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-21;

55



not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and each and every
day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense;

SECTION 3. FINDINGS. The City Council finds all of the above recitals to be true and correct and
incorporates the same in this Ordinance as findings of fact;

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. Thatif any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the
application of that section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for
any reason judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision
of this ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person,
firm, corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision
of the Unified Development Code, and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid
portions and applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions for
this ordinance are declared to be severable;

SECTION 5. REPEALING ORDINANCE IN CONFLICT. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in
conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict;

SECTION 6. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage;

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
THIS THE 3R° DAY OF APRIL, 2023.

Kevin Fowler, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kristy Teague, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Frank J. Garza, City Attorney

1st Reading:  March 20, 2023

2nd Reading:  April 3, 2023

Ch. 38, Subdivisions, Municipal Code of Ordinances Page 2 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-21;
56



Exhibit ‘A’
Chapter 38, Subdivisions,
Municipal Code of Ordinances

Continued on the Following Page ...

Ch. 38, Subdivisions, Municipal Code of Ordinances Page 3 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23-21;

57



ol

@

CHAPTER 38, SUBDIVISIONS, OF THE
MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES

CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT

58



@ SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE

CHAPTER 38, SUBDIVISIONS, OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES
ADOPTED AND SUMMARY OF AMENDMENTS

This table provides a summary of all of the ordinances that were adopted by the City Council amending Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the
Municipal Code of Ordinances. Ordinances adopted and not listed below have been omitted as repealed, superseded, or not of a general
and permanent nature.

ORDINANCE NO. DATE OF ADOPTION  SUMMARY

Adoption of the new Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of
Ordinance; amending the previous Chapter in its entirety.

PAGE | I CITY@QROCKWALL



SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE @

TABLE OF CONTENTS
ARTICLE 1. IN GENERAL <. eeeeeeeeeeessssseseeesssssse e ssssssseeessesseeeses s sssessesssssseeessesse s eeseseseeeesseeseesseseseeesessssssseeeenes 1
SECTION 38-1: AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE .....ooce e seesseeesseeesseesssessssessesessesesss s ssess s es e seees s ses s seses e sesesere e 1
SECTION 38-2: DEFINITIONS w....vr e oeeveeeveseeeeseeessesssessseesss s s eses s eses sttt ettt 1
SECTION 38-3: AUTHORITY .oeeoeeseveseeeseeeeseesseesssessseessseesssesesseses s s eess s es s es e es e e es s ere e 4
=03 1[0) N LN [0 1101 o3 [0 S 5
SECTION 38-5: APPLICABILITY ..ooeeseeeeveseeeseseesesesssesssessseesssesessesessssessseseseesss s sess s s ees s s s seses e esesere e 5
SECTION 38-6: APPLICATION PROCESSING PROCEDURES ...ccccooceoeereseeesseesssessssessssssssesessssessssesssessssesessssessssessssesssesesseseesssessses 5
(1) PRE-APPLICATION MEETING. . ..ooreoreeeseesssessseessesesssessssssesssessseessesesse e ssess s ssesessesesseses s eessesessseessesessssessesess e 5
(2)  DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION. w.ooscvoreeseeeseeessersssesssessssseessseessseessssesssessessssssess s sesesssessesssessssessssssssssesssessssess e 5
(3)  EXPIRATION FOR PROJECT APPROVED PRIOR TO THE ADOPTION OF THIS CHAPTER. ..covoceoseeeseeeseeessserssssessssesssseesssens 6
SECTION 38-7: SUBDIVISION AND PLATTING PROCEDURES .....ooocceoeeeeeereesersesessssessesessseesssesssseesssessssesssessesessesesssssesssesessess e 6
(1) GENERAL PLATTING REQUIREMENTS, PROCEDURES, AND PROCESS. ....ccccoveveseeessserssserssssosssssesssessasssssesssssessssessssessssns 6
(A)  GENERAL PLATTING REQUIREMENTS. ..oorsevosereseeeesseesesessssessseseesesessssessesessssseseees s ssessssesssesessesessesesssessssasossssessssen 6
(B)  GENERAL PLATTING PROCEDURES. .....oosceoseereseeessessssersssessssessssess s sessssessssess s ssessssssssess s seesesssse s sesese 10
(C)  GENERAL PLATTING PROCESS. ...oreeeoeeeseeesseeresssessssessssessseesssssessssessssessseesssasssatess s ssess st stessssesssesesessssssess s 10
(2)  MASTER PLATS. ..o eeeseeesseesseeess s es s ettt ettt ettt 11
(3)  PRELIMINARY PLATS. ..coosesoeeeeseess s seessessssessssesseesess s ees s es et ettt 13
R Y =TI £ T 17
(5)  CONVEYANCE PLATS. w..oooseosseeeseesseesssesssessssess s s sses s eessees s es st ettt et 20
(B)  MINOR PLATS .o eeeeeeeeeeseseeeseeesessess s es sttt ettt 21
(7) REPLATS oo eeseeeseees s seessseessseeses s ee s s ettt ettt e et 23
(8)  AMENDING PLATS. w..oorsoeeeeseeeeseesseesssesssess s ses s esessees ettt ettt et 26
e IO N 1 L =TI £ T 28
(10)  DORMANT PROUECTS. ...ooseeseeeeseeeeseesssees s ssesssssssssessssesssessseesssseses s sess s seese s seessesseess s sesseess s 29
SECTION 38-8: ENGINEERING STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES ... ceoseeeeseeeseeesssesssessssessssessssessssesssssssssesssessseeessesesssessssenee 30
(1) STANDARDS OF DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION MANUAL.....ccoreeereeesseessserssesessesessssessssessssssssssessssessssessssssssseesssessseersses 31
(2)  CIVIL ENGINEERING PLANS. ..ocooreeseeeseeesseesstessssessesesssess s ssessseesessesss s sess s ese et eessersstese s esssesssere s 31
(3)  PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS. ...oocccoeeeeeeeeeeseesssrssseessssessssessssessssessssssesssssssersees 32
(4)  PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING. c1coorevereeseeeesersssesseseesssesseessssessssesessessssess s seessssesesssesaseessessssesssssssessssssessssess s 32
(5)  ENGINEERING INSPECTION, MAINTENANCE, AND ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS. ....oooccoeeee s eneseessensees 32
SECTION 38-9: SUBDIVISION REQUIREMENTS ......oocoeecoeseveeeveeeesesssesssesseseesssesssessssssessssesssessessssssesssssesssessssessesesesssess s ssere e 33
(1) GENERAL POLICIES. ..rcoeseeseeeeseeeseeessesssessseessssssssess st eess s seses s ssess s seeseseses e essseses e ess s s 33
(A)  SUBDIVISION PLATS. 1..ors oo eeseeeeeeeseesssessseesesseess s sessses e sses s es sttt er s 33
(B)  CONFORMANCE TO THE CITY'S PLANS. ..oscooscveseeeseesssesssessssessssesssesessessssesssssesssessssesss s sssssssessssesessssessess s 34
(C)  ADEQUATE PUBLIC FACILITIES. ..oosseereeeseceeseeressessseessssessssessssssssasessssessseessssesssstessssessssessssssssssessssessstsesessssssess s 34
(2)  WATER AND WASTEWATER ..o eeseeeseeessees s s sesssesess s eses s ses s es s es ettt e 37
(A)  WATER AND WASTEWATER BASIC POLICY. ....oosceoseeeeeeeeseseesesessssssssesessssssssessssessseessssesssssessassesstessssessssssssssesssessssess s 37
= N =1 38
(C)  WASTEWATER. ..o eeeeeeseeesseeesssess s ee s ee e ettt et 39
(3)  STORM WATER, DRAINAGE, AND DETENTION. ....c.oocceoseeeseeeseerssessssesssssssseessseessseessseesssesseseseesesessssessssesssessesesessssess s 40
(A)  STORM WATER, DRAINAGE, AND DETENTION POLICIES. ..ooeooveeeereersserssserssesessesessesessssessssssssesessssessasessssssssssesssesssserseses 40

CHAPTER 38, SUBDIVISIONS, MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES 60 PAGE | Il



@ SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE

(B)  STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN. ..occcereeeeeseeseessee et eesseee et ees et seestees et seees oot ees st 41
(C)  DRAINAGE PLAN. ...t seeseeesees et ees et es et eee e ee st ees e e ees ettt 41
(D) CREEKS AND FLOODPLAIN. ..oocer oot eesseesseeesees et seessess oot sese ettt teee et ee sttt ees ettt 41
R 13 =13 £ T 42
(A)  GENERAL STREET POLICIES. ...occoseeoeeeeeeseeseeessesssesseeeseessesesstesssess e seeesteestess s sees et ees oot tsre st sees ettt 42

(B)  STREET DESIGN AND APPURTENANGES. ....cccceoeeeeeseeseessesseesseessesssesseesseesseesses e tseessees ettt 44

(C)  PRIVATE STREETS....ooseseeeeeeseeseessesesssesseeeseees e tesseees st ee et ees s et ees et seee et ee ettt ees ettt 45

(5)  ALLEYWAY'S. ..o seeeeeeseesees e seessees et eee e es s ees e ee e e e es e oot oottt 45
(6)  DRIVEWAYS, FIRE LANES, AND ACCESS EASEMENTS. ...oooooseeseeseeesesseeseessesseeessoestees et seeesseosseeetsoeseeessos et 45
() SIDEWALKS. w.oreeeseeseeseeeseesees e ees et ees et es et eee e et ere e e ee s e oo ee oot ettt ettt 46
YT =T =LY 1= LT 46
(9)  SUBDIVISION NAME AND LOT & BLOCK DESIGN. «...occeseereeeseeseeseesseesceeseessesseesseesseesssossseesseessees s sssesseessos et 46
(10)  UTILITIES. worteeeeeeseeseeeesesseesseesstessees et eeeseeses s ee e e ee e oot eee e et ees ettt 48
(11) AMENITIES oot ees e sees et oot ettt ees e ettt ettt oottt 48
(12)  PARKS AND OPEN SPACE. ....ooe oottt seesseet et see et ees sttt ettt oottt oottt 49
(A)  GENERAL PARKS AND OPEN SPACE POLICIES....occcooceoeeoseeseesseessseesseesteesssesssessseessesssessseesseesssesssesssesssees s 49

(B)  PARKLAND DEDICATION. ..ot eeseessesseeseeseess et ees ettt ees s sees ettt oot 50

(C)  TRAILS. oot eese et eesee s et ee et ees e et ee e e ee oo et et ee et ees ettt 50

(13)  HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION. ....eceeeeseeseessesssesseeesssessee et et sees st sees et eestees ettt eees ettt 50
SECTION 38-10: AGREEMENTS, APPEALS, AND RELIEF PROCEDURES ........cccooeeseeseessessseesseeseessessseessessesssseesseesseessos e 52
(1) FACILITIES AGREEMENTS. ..o seeeeeseeeseesseesscesssesseeesssesses et sess et ee et ees et ee et et et eees et ettt 52
(2)  PETITION FOR WAIVERS. ..occcoeeeseeseeeseeseesseessesseesseeesesessesseees st eesess et ee st ees et et ees st ettt 52
(A)  PURPOSE AND APPLICABILITY. ..ooooeeseeseeseeesessseesseesseeseeesestees sttt ees sttt sees et sees st 52

(B)  PETITION FOR AWAIVER. ...oocees e sceseeeseeseeseees e sesseeeseesteee et eess et sees et ess s sees et ees et sre et sees et 52

(C)  PROCESSING OF AND DECISION ON A PETITION FOR A WAIVER. ....occceeteseesseeseeeseesscessseesseessesssoesseesseessosses s 53

(D)  APPEAL OF A DECISION ON A PETITION FOR A WAIVER. ...occcccoeerereeeseseceseessseesseesseessessseesseessesseesseessoessos s 54

(3)  PETITION FOR A PROPORTIONALITY APPEAL. ...occeoeeeseeseessessseesseessesssee et seesssessseestees s seeseees et ses et sees st 54
(A)  PURPOSE AND APPLICABILITY. ..ooooeeseeseeseeesessseesseesseeseeesestees sttt ees sttt sees et sees st 54

(B)  PROPORTIONALITY APPEAL PETITION REQUIREMENTS. ...occcoeeereeseeeseeseesseessessseesseessessseeseeessessoesseesseessos s 54

(C)  PROCESSING AND DECISION ON A PROPORTIONALITY APPEAL. ....occoooeeteescessesseeeseeessesssesssesssees s sseesses s 55

(D)  EFFECT AND EXPIRATION OF A DECISION ON A PROPORTIONALITY APPEAL......cccooovoseescessceessessesseesseessessesscesso 56

() PETITION FOR VESTED RIGHTS. ....oreeeeeeeseesteesscesssesseeesssessse et sess et see st tees et sees st ses et eees st ettt sees st 56
(A)  PURPOSE AND APPLICABILITY. w..osooeeeeeseeseeessessseeseeeseesseseessesseees s sess et eess st sees st teessees ettt sees st 56

(B)  VESTED RIGHTS PETITION. 1 eoreoseeeeeeeeeseeseessesseeseeseesesesess oot sessseeetoes et sess ettt sees ettt es et 56

(C)  PROCESSING OF AND DECISION ON A VESTED RIGHTS PETITION. ...oooceeseereessesseeeseeessesssesseesseeesssessseesseeseesesesssee 57

(D)  ACTION ON AND ORDER FOR A VESTED RIGHTS PETITION....occccoceereerseeseesecessesssesseeesssesssesseesssesssessseessessesesesssne 58

(E)  EFFECT, EXPIRATION AND EXTENSION OF A VESTED RIGHTS PETITION. ...cccoeorerseescesseessessesssossossseesseessesscesssne 58
SECTIONS 38-11 = 38-49: RESERVED.......c.ooeeseeseeesseeseessessssesssesseees st sessseesseesseessses et sees st see et eees ettt seessees et 59
ARTICLE 1. PARK LAND DEDICATION ...oooooo oo ee e seeeeeeeseseeeeeessessessesssses 60
SECTION 38-50. PURPOSE.......o.coseesseeseeseeseees e sees et sess et et ees st ee et ees et ee et ees st e et ettt ettt 60
SECTION 38-51. DEFINITIONS. w...oscereeeeeseeeseeseeessesseessess e ess et eesse et eeseesseesesee et ees st ee et ees ettt eessees et 60
SECTION 38-52. AUTHORITY FOR THIS ARTICLE. w...occcteeteesteeeceeseeessese e seesseesseesssesseeesseesseos e ssoet oot sees sttt seess st 61

PAGE | IV CITY@ﬁ ROCKWALL



SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE @

SECTION 38-53. APPLICABILTY OF PARKLAND DEDICATION AND/OR PARK FEES. .......cooiiiiiiiiicieciesce s
SECTION 38-54. DEDICATION OF PUBLIC PARKLAND AND THE ESTABLISHMENT OF PRIVATE PARKLAND. .......cccoovnininnerciceciecices 61
SECTION 38-55. CASH-IN-LIEU OF LAND FEES. ..o 62
SECTION 38-56. PRO-RATA EQUIPMENT FEES. ... 62
SECTION 38-57. METHODOLOGY AND CALCULATION OF CASH-IN-LIEU OF LAND FEES AND PRO-RATA EQUIPMENT FEES FOR
NEIGHBORHOOD PARKS. ...ttt 63
SECTION 38-58. ASSESSING AND COLLECTING CASH-IN-LIEU OF LAND FEES AND PRO-RATA EQUIPMENT FEES........cccoovoviivinninen. 64
SECTION 38-59. SPECIAL FUND ESTABLISHED; REFUNDS. ..o 64
SECTION 38-60. REVIEW AND UPDATING PARKS & OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN. .....c.ciiiiiiiniiicieeirsce e 65
SECTION 38-61. PARK DISTRICT BOUNDARIES. ...t 65
SECTION 38-62. APPEALS, WAIVERS, AND VARIANCES TO THIS ARTICLE'S REQUIREMENTS BY THE CITY COUNCIL. .......ccccccviiniicnnne 65
SECTIONS 38-63 - 38-82. RESERVED.....coocuiiiiiiiiiiicieiiciec e 66
ARTICLE HI. IMPACT FEE REGULATIONS ..ottt 67
SECTION 38-103 = 38-361. ...ttt 67
SECTION 38-362 — 38-398. RESERVED. ...t 67
ARTICLE IV. DISASTER WARNING SIREN ..ottt 68
SECTIONS 38-399. PURPOSE. .......couiiiiiiieici it 68
SECTIONS 38-400. DEFINTIONS. ...t 68
SECTIONS 38-401. APPLICABILITY ...ttt 68
SECTIONS 38-402. METHODOLOGY AND CALCULATION OF DISASTER WARNING SIRENS. ........ccoiiiiiiresesesesesesescecse s 68
SECTIONS 38-403. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS.........o s 69
SECTIONS 38-404. PENALTIES, SANCTIONS, AND DETERMINATIONS. ..o 69
SECTIONS 38-405 — 38-429. RESERVED.........oiieceeeese s 69
ARTICLE V. GRADING, EXCAVATION, EARTHWORK, AND EROSION CONTROL .....ccovuiiiirirnieiniinieineisieiseieieissss e 70
SECTIONS 38-430. PURPOSE. ... e 70
SECTIONS 38-431. DEFINITONS. ...t 70
SECTIONS 38-432. APPLICABILITY ...ttt 70
SECTIONS 38-433. GRADING PERMIT REQUIRED FOR FILLING, GRADING, AND EXCAVATION WORK. ........coovviinininerinererescecsccs 70
SECTIONS 38-434. RESPONSIBILITY OF APROPERTY OWNER. ... 70
SECTIONS 38-435. REQUIREMENTS FOR FILLING, GRADING, AND EXCAVATION WORK. ........ccoiiiiiiniiiniieieciecesicesssc s 70
SECTIONS 38-436. GRADING PERMITS AND CRITERIA. ......ooe st 70
SECTIONS 38-437. PERMIT FEE AND DEPOSIT. ...ttt 72
SECTIONS 38-438. PROPERTY OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITY. ...ttt 72
SECTIONS 38-439. EXEMPTIONS. ...t 72

CHAPTER 38, SUBDIVISIONS, MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES 62 PAGE |V



63



@ SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE

ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL

SECTION 38-1: AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

This ordinance is adopted under the authority of the constitution and laws of the State of Texas, including particularly Chapter 212, Texas Local
Government Code.

The regulation of the subdivision and development of land is a valid function of municipal government, and this function has a direct effect on the public
interest and the community’s quality of life. The regulations contained within this Chapter are intended to protect the interests of the public and confer
certain rights and privileges for private land owners. In order to achieve the orderly, efficient and environmentally sound subdivision of land, the city
must be provided with appropriate guidelines and development management mechanisms. The requirements of this Chapter are also intended to
establish a fair and rational procedure for developing and subdividing land such that land will be developed in accordance with the existing physical,
social, and economic conditions of the City of Rockwall. In addition, the purpose of this Chapter is intended to implement the following objectives:

(1) Provide for the orderly, efficient and economical development of residential, commercial and industrial land uses, and community facilities,
including transportation, water, sewerage, drainage, schools, parks, recreation and any other related element or service.

(2) To promote the utilization and development of land in accordance with the City's Comprehensive Plan and Unified Development Code (UDC).

(3) To provide a clear and coherent process to guide property owners through the proper procedures for the subdivision and/or development of land
within the City of Rockwall.

(4) To protect the public interest by providing requirements relating to the provision of public infrastructure (e.g. streets, utilities, sidewalks, trails,
alleyways, and other essential public services).

(5) To provide for public or private facilities that are available and will have sufficient capacity to serve proposed and future developments and citizens
within the City of Rockwall and its Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ).

(6) Toassist in the orderly and efficient coordination of development within the City of Rockwall’'s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ).

(7) To integrate the development of various tracts of land into the City of Rockwall, and to coordinate the future development of adjoining tracts of
land.

(8) To establish adequate and accurate records of the subdivisions of land.

) To provide for efficient traffic circulation throughout the City of Rockwall.
(10) Promote the health, safety, morals and general welfare of the people, and the safe, orderly and healthful development of the community.

SECTION 38-2: DEFINITIONS

When the following words, terms, and phrases are used in this Chapter (i.e. Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances) they shall
have the meanings ascribed to them in this section (except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning):

(1) 100-Year Floodplain. 100-Year Floodplain is property that has a one (1) percent chance of having a flood event in a given year, based on a fully
developed watershed.

(2) Abutting. Abutting is synonymous with the words adjacent, adjoining, or contiguous. It shall mean having a common lot line between lots with a
right-of-way or easement, or a physical improvement (e.g. a street, waterline, park, or creek).

(3) Access. Access is a means of approaching or entering a property, or the ability to cross a property (e.g. a cross access easement or a pedestrian
access easement).

(4) Alley. A minor right-of-way -- typically dedicated to public use -- not intended to provide the primary means of access to an abutting lot or tract,
which is used primarily for vehicular access to the back or side of the property. Alleys may be used for utility service purposes.

(5) Amending Plat. See Section 38-7(8).

(6) Amenity. An Amenity is any aesthetic or physical improvement to a development that increases the development's quality, desirability, and/or
marketability to the general public. Examples of Amenities include but are not limited to an amenity center, private recreational facility (e.g.
swimming pool, club house, tennis courts, etc.), entry features, open space, ponds, water fountains, water features, and hike and bike trails.

(7) Applicant. An Applicant is the person or entity responsible for the submission of a Development Application. The Applicant must be the actual
owner of the property for which a Development Application has been submitted, or be the duly authorized representative of the property owner
[also see Developer].

PAGE | 1 CITY@&ROCKWALL



SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE @

(8) Block. A Block is a grouping of lots that are partially or fully surrounded by one (1) or more streets and/or alleyways. A Block can consist of one
(1) or two (2) tiers of lots. Lots that are separated by an alleyway can be in the same Block, but lots that are separated by a street shall be in
different blocks.

(9) Builder. See Developer.

(10) Building Setback Line. A Building Setback Line shall mean the line on a subdivision plat delineating the nearest point to which a building or
buildings may be located to a street, alleyway, or property line.

(11) Building. A Building is any structure for the support, shelter and enclosure of persons or movable property of any kind [also see Structure].

(12) Building Code. The Building Code shall mean the current version of the International Building Code (IBC) adopted by the City of Rockwall.

(13) Chapter. Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances.
(14) City. The City shall mean the City of Rockwall.

(15) City Council. The City Council shall mean the governing body of the City of Rockwall.

(16) City Engineer. The City Engineer is the individual, or his/her designee, with responsibility to review and approve construction plans for
development projects. He/she is also responsible for overseeing the construction of the development to ensure that it meets the requirements of
the City of Rockwall Construction Design Standards.

(17) Civil Engineering Plans. Civil Engineering Plans are the drawings and technical specifications that conform to this Chapter and the Engineering
Department's Standards of Design and Construction Manual.

(18) Commission. The Commission shall mean the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall.

(19) Comprehensive Plan: The Comprehensive Plan shall mean the City's current Comprehensive Plan, which includes the goals and policies with
regards -- but not limited — to land use, growth management, environment/ecology, parks, open space, trails, infrastructure (e.g. thoroughfares,
water, and wastewater), and other facets of the City’s physical form. The policies and goals contained within this document govern the future
development of the City and consist of various components that regulate specific geographic areas, functions, and services of the City of Rockwall.

(20) Construction Plans. See Civil Engineering Plans.

(21) Conveyance Plat. See Section 38-7(5).

(22) Cul-de-Sac. Cul-de-Sac shall mean a local street with only one primary outlet and having a terminal of sufficient width for the reversal of traffic
movement.

(23) Dead-End Street. A Dead-End Street shall mean a public or private street, other than a Cul-De-Sac, with only one (1) outlet.

(24) Developer. A Developeris a person or entity -- limited to the property owner or the property owner’s duly authorized representative -- who proposes
the division or improvement of land and/or other activities covered by this Chapter so as to constitute a Subdivision, including the preparation of
a subdivision plat showing the layout of the land and the public improvements involved with the development and/or subdivision of the property.
The word Developer is intended to include the terms subdivider, property owner, and applicant.

(25) Development. Development consists of any activities related to the platting or physical subdivision of land including the construction,
reconstruction, conversion, or enlargement of buildings or structures; the construction of impervious surfaces (e.g. parking lots); the installation
of utilities, roadways, drainage facilities or other infrastructure; or any disturbance of the surface or subsurface of the land in preparation for
construction activities, including grading, drainage, storage, paving, clearing, filing, and/or removal of vegetation or soil, and any mining dredging,
excavation or drilling operations.

(26) Development Agreement. A Development Agreement is an agreement authorized in accordance with Section 212.172, Development Agreement,
of the Texas Local Government Code between the City of Rockwall and a property owner within the corporate limits of the City of Rockwall or its
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) [see Facilities Agreement].

(27) Development Application. A Development Application is an application for any type of subdivision plat authorized or addressed by this Chapter or
the Unified Development Code (UDC). A Development Application may also be referred to as a Permit within Chapter 245, Issuance of Local
Permits, of the Texas Local Government Code.

CHAPTER 38, SUBDIVISIONS, MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES 65 PAGE |2



@ SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE

(28) Development Services Departments. The Development Services Departments refers to the Engineering, Planning and Zoning, and Building
Inspections Departments of the City of Rockwall.

(29) Director of Planning and Zoning. The Director of Planning and Zoning (also referred to as the Director of the Planning and Zoning Department)
of the City of Rockwall or his/her designee.

(30) Dwelling Unit. A Dwelling Unit is a single unit providing complete, independent living facilities for a family, and including a residential kitchen,
bathroom, and provisions for living, sleeping and sanitation.

(31) Double Frontage Lot. A Double Frontage Lot is a lot that has a frontage on two (2) non-intersecting streets, as distinguished from a corner lot.

(32) Easement. An Easement is a grant of one or more of the property rights by the property owner to and/or for the use or benefit by the public, a
corporation, or other person or entity. An Easement shall be identified on a subdivision plat, or by a separate instrument and filed for record with
the Rockwall County Clerk.

(33) Engineer. An Engineer shall mean an individual who has been duly licensed by and in good standing with the Texas Board of Professional
Engineers, and has been entitled to engage in the practice of engineering by the State of Texas.

(34) Facilities Agreement. A Facilities Agreement is an agreement between the City of Rockwall and a property owner and/or developer that is required
whenever the construction of a public improvement is funded entirely or in part by a property owner and/or private developer. The agreement
sets out the terms and conditions of the provision of the public improvement [see Development Agreement].

(35) Final Plat. See Section 38-7(4).

(36) Fire Code. The Fire Code shall mean the current version of the International Fire Code (IFC) adopted by the City of Rockwall.

(37) Homeowner's Assaciation (HOA). The term Homeowner’s Association (HOA) shall mean an association that is organized within a development
in which individual owners share a common interests and responsibilities for open space, drainage and detention facilities, landscaping, amenities
or facilities, and which operates under recorded land agreements. A Homeowner’s Association (HOA) shall include the term Property Owner's
Association (POA), Neighborhood Organization, and or Property Management Corporation (PMC).

(38) Inspector. An Inspector is a person that is duly authorized by the City Manager who may be employed by the City of Rockwall or as a consultant,
and is designated to inspect any portion or all of the construction performed in a subdivision wither on a part-time or full-time basis. The duties
of the Inspector shall consist of inspecting all work during construction and/or after completion to determine compliance with the Civil Engineering
Plans, specifications, and subdivision regulations, with authority to stop work during construction for non-completion, if the work is defective or
non-compliant.

(39) Lot. A Lot is an undivided tract or parcel of land having frontage on a public or private street, which is -- or may be in the future -- offered for sale,
conveyance, transfer, or improvement and is intended to be occupied by a structure or group of structures.

(40) Lot of Record. A Lot of Record is a lot or parcel of land which is part of a subdivision, the map or plat of which has been recorded in the office of
the County Clerk of Rockwall County; or a lot or parcel of land not a part of an urban or town lot subdivision, the deed of which has been recorded
in the office of the County Clerk of Rockwall County prior to the adoption date of the Unified Development Code (UDC) (i.e. June 7, 2004;
Ordinance No. 04-38).

(41) Master Plat. See Section 38-7(2).

(42) Minor Plat. See Section 38-7(6).

(43) Official Filing Date. The Official Filing Date shall mean the date an application is deemed to be complete by the responsible City official in the
manner prescribed by Section 38-6(2)(C).

(44) Owner. The Owneris the fee simple owner(s) of property being platted or their representative(s) when authorized by a power of attorney, corporate
resolution or another appropriate document.

(45) Preliminary Plat. See Section 38-7(3).

(46) Pro-Rata Agreement. A Pro-Rata Agreement is an agreement between a property owner and/or developer and the City of Rockwall whereby the
property owner and/or developer constructs infrastructure in accordance with the City’'s Master Water Distribution Plan and/or Master Wastewater

PAGE |3 CITY@GROCKWALL



SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE @

Collection Plan, which are designed and constructed to service other developments, making the property owner and/or developer eligible for
reimbursement of a percentage of the cost of such improvement [see Development Agreement].

(47) Replat. See Section 38-7(7).

(48) Right-of-Way. A Right-of-Way is a use of land dedicated by subdivision plat or by metes and bounds to and for the use of the general public,
which is separate and distinct from the lots and parcels abutting it, and which is not included within the dimensions or areas of such lots or parcels.
Right-of-Way generally describes an area used for the provision of streets and utilities. Unless otherwise specified, the term Right-of-Way shall
refer to public right-of-way.

(49) Street. A Street is an access way for vehicular traffic and other public uses, whether designated as a street, highway, thoroughfare, arterial,
parkway, thoroughfare, road, avenue, boulevard, lane, place or otherwise designated; however, an alleyway shall not be considered a Street.

(50) Sidewalk. A Sidewalk is a paved travel way intended for pedestrian use.

(51) State Roadway. State Roadways shall include I1H-30, SH-205, SH-276, SH-66, FM-549, FM-740, FM-552, FM-3097, FM1141, FM-3549, and FM-
1139.

(52) Structure. A Structure is anything constructed or erected, which requires location on the ground, or attached to something having a location on
the ground; including, but not limited to, buildings, communications towers, signs and swimming pools, and excluding utility poles, parking lots,
fences and retaining walls [also see Building].

(53) Subdivider. See Developer.

(54) Subdivision. A Subdivision is the division or assemblage of any tract or parcel of land situated within the corporate limits of the City of Rockwall -
- or within the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) of the City of Rockwall — into two (2) or more parts (whether immediate or future) for sale or
development or for the purpose of establishing or laying out a subdivision and/or delineating a residential or non-residential lot, street, alleyway,
or other public or private infrastructure or use. This term includes Re-Subdivision, but does not include the division of land for agricultural purposes
on parcels or tracts of land five (5) acres or more that does not involve the creation/dedication of a new street, alleyway, or easement.

(55) Subdivision Plat. A Subdivision Plat shall mean a plan which shows the exact layout and proposed construction of a proposed development into
one (1) or more lots, blocks, streets, parks, school sites, easements, alleys, and/or any other elements as required by this Chapter, including any
engineering or construction standards for related improvements, and which conform to all requirements of this Chapter and any other applicable
City codes or ordinances, and which is subject to approval by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council, unless otherwise specified
herein.

(56) Surveyor. A Surveyor shall mean a licensed state land surveyor or a registered public surveyor as authorized by the State of Texas to practice
the profession of surveying.

(57) Thoroughfare. Thoroughfare is a general term for a Street, which has a more specific meaning when used in conjunction with a distinct
classification (e.g. Minor Collector, Collector, A4D, P6D, etc.). Each class provides a certain degree of continuity, capacity, and accessibility to
adjacent land uses.

(58) Tract. A Tract s all contiguous property in common ownership.

(59) Unified Development Code (UDC). The Unified Development Code (UDC) shall mean the zoning code for the City of Rockwall.

(60) Variance. A Variance is a modification of the provisions of these regulations, as applied to a specific piece of property, as further set out in Section
38-62 of this Chapter.

SECTION 38-3: AUTHORITY

The regulations contained within this Chapter are adopted under the authority of Chapter 212, Municipal Requlation of Subdivisions and Property
Development, and Chapter 43, Municipal Annexation, of the Texas Local Government Code and the City's Charter.

o STATE LAW REFERENCE: AUTHORITY TO ADOPT SUBDIVISION REGULATION IS GRANTED BY V. T. C. A.. LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE § 212.002.

CHAPTER 38, SUBDIVISIONS, MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES 67 PAGE | 4



@ SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE

SECTION 38-4: JURISDICTION

The provisions of this Chapter are intended to provide regulations for the subdivision and development of land -- where applicable -- to all areas within
the City's corporate boundaries and within the City’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), as exist at the time of the adoption of this Chapter and as may
be adjusted in the future through the annexation or incorporation of land or through the City’s Interlocal Agreements with Rockwall County in accordance
with Chapter 242, Authority of Municipality and County to Regulate Subdivisions in and Outside Municipality’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction, of the Local
Government Code.

o STATE LAW REFERENCE: JURISDICITION IS GRANTED BY V. T. C. A., LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE § 212.003.

SECTION 38-5: APPLICABILITY

The provisions of this Chapter, the technical standards contained in the Engineering Department's Standards of Design and Construction Manual, and
the standards and requirements regulating the construction of facilities that are applicable to subdivision plats contained in other portions of the
Municipal Code of Ordinances shall constitute the subdivision rules and regulations of the City of Rockwall and shall apply to any division, assemblage
(i.e. the combination of separate parcels of land), and/or development of land within the City of Rockwall’s corporate boundaries or its Extraterritorial
Jurisdiction (ETJ). No building permits or other permits shall be issued for any building or structure on a property until a subdivision plat has been
approved and recorded.

SECTION 38-6: APPLICATION PROCESSING PROCEDURES

(1) PRE-APPLICATION MEETING.

(A) Purpose of the Pre-Application Meeting. Prior to the submittal of an application, applicants are encouraged to schedule a Pre-Application
Meeting to meet with the City’'s Development Services Departments to discuss the development requirements, review procedures, and
approval process. While strongly encouraged, a Pre-Application Meeting is optional and is not a prerequisite to submitting an application.

(B) Pre-Application Meeting Request. A request for a Pre-Application Meeting shall be accompanied by information that clearly conveys the
type of development being proposed and/or the type of development application that the applicant intends to submit.

(C) Vested Rights. The Pre-Application Meeting is for informational purposes only and does not constitute a permit as defined by Chapter 245
Issuance of Local Permits, of the Texas Local Government Code. In addition, the Pre-Application Meeting Request form is not considered
to be an application and does not confer vested rights. No applications or other materials pertaining to development will be submitted or
accepted for review or filing during the Pre-Application Meeting.

(2) DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION.

(A) Development Application Content. All Development Applications for subdivision plats shall conform to the requirements stipulated by the
Complete Development Packet -- as currently exists or as may be amended in the future --, which shall be established and maintained by
the Director of the Planning and Zoning Department.

(B) Development Application Fees. Every Development Application shall be accompanied by the prescribed fees set forth in the City of
Rockwall’s Unified Development Code (UDC), and approved by the City Council; however, these fees may be waived from time-to-time by
the City Council of the City of Rockwall or the City Manager or his/her designee.

(C) Complete Development Application. No Development Application shall be accepted by the City unless such request is accompanied by the
documents and plans required by and prepared in accordance with the Complete Development Packet. Every Development Application
shall be subject to a determination of completeness by the Director of the Planning and Zoning Department and City Engineer; however, a
determination of completeness does not constitute a determination of compliance with the substantive requirements of this Chapter. The
filing or processing of any application by City staff prior to the Application Deadline is deemed to be null and void, and -- upon discovery of
such a filing or processing - City staff shall return the application to the applicant in accordance with Section 38-6(2)(D)(3). In addition, the
Director of the Planning and Zoning Department may -- on a case-by-case basis -- require additional documents or plans to be submitted
with a Development Application that are not typically required by the Complete Development Packet, but are consistent with the application
contents and standards contained within this Chapter. If a Development Application is determined to be complete, the application shall be
processed as prescribed by this Chapter.

(D) Relationship to Zoning. For land in the corporate limits of the City of Rockwall, no Development Application shall be determined to be
complete or accepted where the intended land use or the intensity of a proposed land use is not authorized in the zoning district in which the
property is located, unless the application is accompanied by a copy of the Unified Development Code (UDC) or other certification verifying
that the proposed use for which the Development Application being submitted is authorized by the zoning district in which the property is

PAGE | 5 CITY@QROCKWALL



©)

SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE @

located. If a request to change the zoning for the land to be platted to allow the development proposed in the plat is pending, the zoning
application shall be decided before a determination is made whether the subdivision plat is complete. If the zoning application is denied, the
subdivision plat shall be deemed incomplete. For newly annexed land, no subdivision plat will be accepted for any use or intensity of use
not authorized in the Agricultural (AG) District as stipulated by the Unified Development Code (UDC), until the property has been permanently
classified on the zoning district map.

Development Applications for Subdivision Plats in the City of Rockwall’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). Where the land to be platted lies
within the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) of the City of Rockwall, no Development Application for a subdivision plat shall be accepted as
complete for filing by the municipal authority unless such Development Application adheres to the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement entered
with Rockwall County prepared in accordance with Chapter 242, Authority of Municipality and County to Requlate Subdivisions In and Outside
Municipality’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction, of the Texas Local Government Code.

Grounds for the Denial or Non-Acceptance of a Development Application. The following shall be grounds for denial or non-acceptance of a
Development Application:

(1) Incomplete Application. The processing of a Development Application by City staff prior to the time the application is determined to be
complete shall not constitute acceptance of the Development Application. In addition, incomplete Development Applications shall not
be accepted by the City of Rockwall.

(2) Delinquent City Taxes. A Development Application shall not be deemed accepted or complete, nor shall it be approved, if there are
delinquent City taxes owed by the subject property.

(3) Denial or Non-Acceptance of a Development Application. City staff shall send written notice by mail or email to the applicant of a
Development Application that is denied or deemed to be not accepted within ten (10) business days of the determination of
completeness. The written notice does not need to identify all the reasons the application was denied or deemed to be not accepted;
however, the notice should contain at least one or more reasons for the non-acceptance.

Vested Rights. For the purposes of determining Vested Rights -- pursuant to Section 38-10(4) -- no vested rights are accrued solely from the
filing of a Development Application that has expired pursuant to the requirements of this Chapter, or from the filing of a complete Development
Application that is subsequently denied.

(3) EXPIRATION FOR PROJECT APPROVED PRIOR TO THE ADOPTION OF THIS CHAPTER.

(A)

Two (2) Year Expiration Established. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Chapter, any approved Development Application for which
no expiration date was in effect on the effective date of this Chapter, an expiration date of two (2) years following the effective date of this
Chapter shall apply, unless the applicant files a written petition before such date for a Vested Rights Determination pursuant to Section 38-
10(4) alleging that progress has been made toward completion of the project for which the application subject to expiration was filed. If a
Vested Rights Petition is timely filed and subsequently approved, the City Council shall determine the expiration date of the Development
Application in deciding the petition.

Five (5) Year Expiration Established. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Chapter, once a Development Application has expired
under Section 38-6(3)(A), all previously approved applications for the same land shall also expire not later than five (5) years following the
date of filing of the first Development Application for the project for which the expired application was filed, unless the applicant files a written
petition before such date for a Vested Rights Determination pursuant to Section 38-10(4). If a Vested Rights Petition is timely filed and
subsequently approved, the City Council shall determine the expiration date of the previously approved applications in deciding the petition.

SECTION 38-7: SUBDIVISION AND PLATTING PROCEDURES

(1) GENERAL PLATTING REQUIREMENTS, PROCEDURES, AND PROCESS.

(A)

GENERAL PLATTING REQUIREMENTS.

(1) Required Information for all Subdivision Plats. Unless provided for below or required in the Development Application, all subdivision
plats shall conform to -- or be accompanied by -- the following information:

(@) General Subdivision Plat Information. All subdivision plats shall show the following information:

(1) Case Number. The Case Number will be provided by the City, and shall be placed in the lower right-hand corner of all
subdivision plats.

CHAPTER 38, SUBDIVISIONS, MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES 69 PAGE | 6



@ SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE

(2) Ownership Information. The Ownership Information of the area being platted shall be provided and shall include the name,
address, and phone number of all property owners.

(3) Developer Information. If applicable, the information of the Developer for the proposed subdivision plat shall be provided and
shall include the name, company, address, and phone number of the Developer.

(4) Survey/Engineer Information. The information of the Surveyor/Engineer who prepared the subdivision plat shall be provided
and shall include the name, company, address, and phone number of the Surveyor/Engineer.

(5) Date of Subdivision Plat Preparation. The date the subdivision plat was prepared shall be indicated on the subdivision plat.

(6) Survey Monuments/State Plane Coordinates. The location of the development is required to be tied to a Rockwall Survey
Monument, or two (2) corners of the development should be tied to the State Plan Coordinates (i.e. NAD 83 State Plane
Texas, North Central [7202], US Survey Feet).

(7) Vicinity Map. A Vicinity Map should show the boundaries of the proposed subdivision relative to the rest of the City at an
appropriate scale to determine the general location of the area being platted.

(8) North Point or North Arrow. The North Point or North Arrow must be facing true north on all subdivision plats, unless the scale
of the drawings or scope of the project requires a different position.

(9) Numeric and Graphic Scale. Subdivision plats should be drawn to an appropriate engineering scale (i.e. 1”= 50, 1”= 100’,
and etcetera.).

(10) Subdivision Boundary, Acreage, and Square Footage. Indicate the Subdivision Boundary Lines, Acreage, and Square
Footage.

(11) Lot and Block. Each Lot and Block should be clearly indicated by number or letter. For each lot, an indication of the square
footage and acreage should be provided. As an alternative a calculation sheet can be provided. A total lot count shall also
be provided.

(12) Building Setbacks. For all residential plats, the building setback lines shall be indicated for all property lines that are adjacent
to a street.

(13) Easements. Label all existing and proposed easements relative to the site and include the type, width, and purpose of the
easement. All off-site easements shall be labeled with the filing information.

(14) City Limits/Limits of the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). If contiguous with the area being platted or if visible on the vicinity
map, the corporate limits of the City of Rockwall and its Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) should be clearly labeled.

(15) Property Lines. The Property Lines for all lots proposed or existing shall be indicated on all subdivision plats.

(16) Streets. Label all the proposed and existing Streets with the proposed and approved street names.

(17) Right-of-Way and Centerlines. Label the Right-of-Way widths and street Centerlines for each street within and adjacent to the
proposed area depicted on the subdivision plat. Also, indicate the location and dimensions of any proposed right-of-way
dedication.

(18) Corner Clips. Indicate all existing and proposed Corner Clips and any subsequent dedication.

(19) Adjacent Properties. Indicate all ownership information of the parcels adjacent to and contiguous with the area for the
proposed subdivision plat. In addition, indicate the lot patterns and name of all contiguous subdivisions, and the recorded
instrument numbers, record name, and/or deed record by volume and page.

(20) Dedication of Public Land Uses. If applicable, indicate the boundary lines, dimensions, and descriptions of spaces to be
dedicated for Public Land Uses.

(21) Floodplain. If applicable, show the boundaries of the 100-Year Floodplain and floodway including cross sections with the 100-
year surface elevation being labeled at each cross section.

PAGE |7

CITbeROCKWALL



SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE @

(22) Wetlands and Waters of the United States (WOTUS). If applicable, indicate the boundary lines of delineated Wetlands and
Water of the United States (WOTUS).

(23) Legal Description. Place the Legal Description -- metes and bounds description and field notes -- on the proposed subdivision
plat.

(b) General Notes. The following General Notes shall be provided on all subdivision plats:

(1) Subdivider’s Statement. Selling a portion of this addition by metes and bounds is unlawful and a violation of the Subdivision
Ordinance of the City of Rockwall and Chapter 212, Municipal Requlation of Subdivisions and Property Development, of the
Texas Local Government Code, and shall be subject to the City of Rockwall withholding utilities and building permits.

(2) Public Improvement Statement. It shall be the policy of the City of Rockwall to withhold issuing buildings permits until all
streets, water, sewer and storm drainage systems have been accepted by the City. The approval of a subdivision plat by the
City of Rockwall does not constitute any representation, assurance or guarantee that any building within such subdivision plat
shall be approved, authorized, or permit issued, nor shall such approval constitute any representation, assurance or guarantee
by the City of Rockwall of the adequacy and availability for water and sanitary sewer for personal use and fire protection within
such subdivision plat, as required under the Subdivision Ordinance of the City of Rockwall.

(3) Drainage and Detention Easements. The property owner shall be responsible for maintaining, repairing, and replacing and
shall bear sole liability of all systems within the drainage and detention easements.

(4) Fire Lanes. All Fire Lanes will be constructed, maintained, repaired and replaced by the property owner. Fire Lanes shall be
constructed in accordance with the approved Civil Engineering Plans for both on-site and off-site Fire Lane improvements.

(5) Street Appurtenances. All decorative signage, posts, or lights installed in public right-of-way shall be installed, maintained,
repaired, and replaced by the Homeowner’s Association (HOA).

(c) Owner’s Certificate of Dedication. An Owner’s Certificate of Dedication for all public rights-of-way, easements, parks and open
space, and other public uses shall be signed by the property owner and all other parties who have a mortgage or lien interest on
the property being platted. These signatures require the acknowledgement of a notary public. All deed restrictions or Covenants,
Conditions, and Restrictions (CC&Rs) that are to be filed in conjunction with the subdivision plat shall be shown or filed separately.
The Owner’s Certificate of Dedication shall be as follows:

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

WHEREAS [OWNER’S NAME], BEING THE OWNER OF A TRACT OF land in the County of Rockwall, State of Texas, said tract
being described as follows: [LEGAL DESCRIPTION]

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

| (we) the undersigned owner(s) of the land shown on this plat, and designated herein as the [SUBDIVISION NAME] subdivision
to the City of Rockwall, Texas, and whose name is subscribed hereto, hereby dedicate to the use of the public forever all streets,
alleys, parks, water courses, drains, easements and public places thereon shown on the purpose and consideration therein
expressed. | (we) further certify that all other parties who have a mortgage or lien interest in the [SUBDIVISION NAME] subdivision
have been notified and signed this plat. | (we) understand and do hereby reserve the easement strips shown on this plat for the
purposes stated and for the mutual use and accommodation of all utilities desiring to use or using same. | (we) also understand
the following;

(1) No buildings shall be constructed or placed upon, over, or across the off-site and on-site utility easements as described herein.

(2) Any public utility shall have the right to remove and keep removed all or part of any buildings, fences, trees, shrubs, or other
growths or improvements which in any way endanger or interfere with construction, maintenance or efficiency of their
respective system on any of these easement strips; and any public utility shall at all times have the right of ingress or egress
to, from and upon the said easement strips for purpose of construction, reconstruction, inspecting, patrolling, maintaining, and

CHAPTER 38, SUBDIVISIONS, MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES 71 PAGE | 8



@ SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE

either adding to or removing all or part of their respective system without the necessity of, at any time, procuring the permission
of anyone.

(3) The City of Rockwall will not be responsible for any claims of any nature resulting from or occasioned by the establishment of
grade of streets in the subdivision.

(4) The developer/property owner and subdivision engineer shall bear total responsibility for storm drain improvements.

(5) The developer/property owner shall be responsible for the necessary facilities to provide drainage patterns and drainage
controls such that properties within the drainage area are not adversely affected by storm drainage from the development.

(6) No house dwelling unit, or other structure shall be constructed on any lot in this addition by the owner or any other person
until the developer and/or owner has complied with all requirements of the Subdivision Regulations of the City of Rockwall
regarding improvements with respect to the entire block on the street or streets on which property abuts, including the actual
installation of streets with the required base and paving, curb and gutter, water and sewer, drainage structures, storm
structures, storm sewers, and alleys, all according to the specifications of the City of Rockwall; or

Until an escrow deposit, sufficient to pay for the cost of such improvements, as determined by the city's engineer and/or city
administrator, computed on a private commercial rate basis, has been made with the city secretary, accompanied by an agreement
signed by the developer and/or owner, authorizing the city to make such improvements at prevailing private commercial rates, or
have the same made by a contractor and pay for the same out of the escrow deposit, should the developer and/or owner fail or
refuse to install the required improvements within the time stated in such written agreement, but in no case shall the City be
obligated to make such improvements itself. Such deposit may be used by the owner and/or developer as progress payments as
the work progresses in making such improvements by making certified requisitions to the city secretary, supported by evidence of
work done; or

Until the developer and/or owner files a corporate surety bond with the city secretary in a sum equal to the cost of such
improvements for the designated area, guaranteeing the installation thereof within the time stated in the bond, which time shall be
fixed by the city council of the City of Rockwall.

| (we) further acknowledge that the dedications and/or exaction’s made herein are proportional to the impact of the Subdivision
upon the public services required in order that the development will comport with the present and future growth needs of the City;
I (we), my (our) successors and assigns hereby waive any claim, damage, or cause of action that | (we) may have as a result of
the dedication of exactions made herein.

PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE

SIGNATURE OF PARTY WITH MORTGAGE OR LIEN INTEREST [IF APPLICABLE]

Notary Public Signature Block. All signatures on the Owner’s Certificate of Dedication shall be required to be acknowledged by a
notary public. The Notary Public Signature Block shall be provided as follows:

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared [PROPERTY OWNER], known to me to be the person
whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purpose and
consideration therein stated.

Given upon my hand and seal of office this [DAY] day of [MONTH], [YEAR].

NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE STATE OF TEXAS MY COMMISSION EXPIRES

Surveyor's/Reqistered Engineer Certificate. A registered engineer or state licensed surveyor shall be required to sign the
subdivision plat certifying that the subdivision plat has been prepared by them, in accordance with the City of Rockwall's Subdivision
Ordinance, and that all the necessary survey monuments are shown correctly on the subdivision plat. The Surveyor’s/Register
Engineer Certificate shall be provided as follows:

PAGE |9

CITYﬁROCKWALL



SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE @

NOW, THEREFORE KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT I, [SURVEYOR’S NAME], do hereby certify that | prepared this plat from an actual and accurate survey of the land, and that
the corner monuments shown thereon were properly placed under my personal supervision.

SURVEYOR [OR] REGISTERED ENGINEER REGISTERED PUBLIC SURVEYOR NO. [OR]
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER NO.

()  Profiles and Cross Sections for Floodplains. Profiles and cross sections of all floodplains shall be shown on the subdivision plat
at a minimum distance of 300-feet in order to determine that the subdivision plat will function in accordance with the City’s
Standards of Design and Construction. These profiles and cross sections shall contain the elevations and source of data for the
information provided.

(B) GENERAL PLATTING PROCEDURES.

(1) Action on a Subdivision Plat Application. All Development Applications for the subdivision plats identified in this Chapter shall be subject
to the following:

(a) Official Filing Date. The time period established by Section 212.009, Approval Procedure: Initial Approval, of the Texas Local
Government Code for acting upon an application for a subdivision plat shall commence on the official filing date for the complete
application pursuant to the requirements of this Chapter. The official filing date shall be defined as the date the application is
deemed to be complete by the Director of the Planning and Zoning Department and City Engineer in accordance with the manner
prescribed in Section 38-6(2)(C). The Planning & Zoning Commission shall act on the plat within 30-days after official filing date.
The subdivision plat shall be considered approved if it is not disapproved by the Planning & Zoning Commission within such 30-
day period. Once the Planning & Zoning Commission considers such subdivision plat, the City Council shall act on the plat within
30-days after Planning & Zoning Commission consideration. The subdivision plat shall be considered approved if it is not
disapproved by the City Council within such thirty (30) day period.

(b) Extension Request. An applicant may submit a written request to extend the time period established by Section 212.009, Approval
Procedure: Initial Approval, of the Texas Local Government Code for a one (1) time extension not to exceed a period of 30-days
(i.e. the Extension Request). An Extension Request must be received by the City of Rockwall two (2) business days prior to the
Planning and Zoning Commission action date. Failure to submit an Extension Request by this date shall not be considered properly
submitted, and action shall be taken on the subdivision plat application at the regularly scheduled meeting. Acceptance of an
Extension Request shall not be deemed in anyway a waiver of any of the requirements contained within this Chapter.

o STATE LAW REFERENCE: AUTHORITY TO ADOPT SUBDIVISION REGULATION IS GRANTED BY V. T. C. A., LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE §
212.009.

(C) GENERAL PLATTING PROCESS.

(1) General Stages of Subdivision Plat Approval and Development Process Inside the Corporate Limits of the City of Rockwall. Unless
otherwise stated in this Chapter for a specific type of subdivision plat, the following is the general stages of subdivision plat approval
and development process in the City of Rockwall are as follows:

(@) The general stages of subdivision platting approval and the development process for Commercial property in the City of Rockwall
is as follows:

(1) Zoning. See Section 02, Zoning, of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development
Code.

(2) Preliminary Plat. See Section 38-7(3).

(3) Site Plan. See Section 03, Site Plans, of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified
Development Code.

(4) Civil Engineering Plans. See Section 38-8(2).

(5) Final Plat. See Section 38-7(4).

(b) The general stages of subdivision platting approval and the development process for a Residential Subdivision in the City of
Rockwall is as follows:

CHAPTER 38, SUBDIVISIONS, MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES 73 PAGE | 10



@ SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE

(1) Zoning. See Section 02, Zoning, of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development
Code.

) Master Plat. See Section 38-7(2).

) Preliminary Plat. See Section 38-7(3).

) Civil Engineering Plans. See Section 38-8.

) Site Plan. See Section 03, Site Plans, of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified

Development Code.
(6) Final Plat. See Section 38-7(4).

a1 BN

(
(
(
(

(2) MASTER PLATS.

(A) Purpose. The purpose of a Master Plat is to delineate the timing and sequence of each phase of a subdivision or residential development
that is proposed to consist of multiple phases within a larger parcel or tract of land, and to ensure the availability and capacity of the public
improvements necessary to serve the proposed development.

(B) Applicability. A Master Plat shall be required for any division of land within the corporate boundaries of the City of Rockwall where a proposed
residential development is to occur in multiple phases. A Master Plat is neither required nor permitted within the City’s Extraterritorial
Jurisdiction (ETJ), unless required through a Development Agreement pursuant to Section 212.172 of the Texas Local Government Code.

(C) Exceptions. A Master Plat shall not be required when a proposed subdivision or residential development consists of only one (1) phase.

(D) Required Information. A Master Plat shall conform to -- or be accompanied by -- the following information:

(1) General Master Plat Information. In addition to the General Subdivision Plat Information contained in Section 38-7(1)(A)(1)(a), all Master
Plats shall show the following information:

(a)

(b)

Subdivision. A Master Plat shall provide a schematic layout of the entire tract to be subdivided, any remainder tracts and its
relationship to adjacent property and existing developments.

Title Block. Provide the following Title Block in the lower right-hand corner of the subdivision plat:

MASTER PLAT

[SUBDIVISION NAME]

BEING

[TOTAL RESIDENTIAL LOTS] Residential Lots and [TOTAL OPEN SPACE LOTS] Open Space Lots
[TOTAL ACREAGE]-Acres or [TOTAL SQUARE FEET] SF

SITUATED IN THE

[SURVEY], [ABSTRACT NO.]

CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

Dwelling Units/Population Density. Indicate the proposed number of Dwelling Units and the proposed Population Density (i.e. the
total number of Dwelling Units/Total Acreage = Population Density).

Zoning and Land Use Information. Indicate the Zoning classifications, and the existing and proposed Land Uses.

Parks and Open Space. Identify the dimensions, names, and description of all existing and proposed public and private parks and
open spaces. Also, indicate the dimensions, names, and descriptions of all schools and other public use and indicate the phase
of completion.

Parks and Open Space Plan. A Master Plat shall be accompanied by a Parks and Open Space Plan that shows all proposed trails,

parks and open space and any proposed amenities for these private and public uses of land and indicate th